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REEF POINT GARDENS | |

The Gift of Beatrix Farrand
to the General Library
University of California, Berkeley

THE NEW FIRE- PROOF BUILDING OF THE FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF BAR HARBOR, MAINE

All modern improvements.

Office Hours, 9 a.m. to 3 p.m,

You are cordially invited to call and make use of its conveniences at all times.



QUAKER RANGES

THE LEADINC RANCE SINCE 1854

TRADE SUPPLIED BY

The Austin Stove Store

SHEET METAL WORKERS

ALSO

CONTRACTORS AND DEALERS

CAPITOL BOILERS

AND RADIATORS STEEL CEILINGS

HARDWARE
HOUSEHOLD TINWARE
FURNACES AND BICYCLES
HEATERS

HEADQUARTERS FOR

Mt. Desert Island Stove and Range Repairs
Sheet Metal Work of all Kinds
Plumbing, Heating and Ventilating

ESTIMATES AND CATALOGUES FREELY FURNISHED

The Austin Stove Store

36 SCHOOL STREET, BAR HARBOR

Telephone, 27—11



Office - - 345
Residence 18-2

E. K. WHITAKER

CONTRACTOR
and BUILDER

B
BUILDERS' SUPPLIES OF ALL KINDS

Special Mill Work Promptly Attended to
Furniture Made and Repaired
Cabinet Work

Telephone No. ;

4
N

OFFICE, SHOP AND MILL

120 & 122 Cottage Street and Barnard Avenue
BAR HARBOR, MAINE



JORDAI PORD HOUSE

T. A. McINTIRE, Proprietor

FAMOUS CHICKEN DINNERS
AFTERNOON TEAS
ICE CREAM AND SODA
BEAUTIFUL SCENERY
DELIGHTFUL DRIVES

Photographs, Souvenir Post Cards and Novelties

SEAL HARBOR, MAINE



LAWRENCE GOODWIN

RopICK HdUSE, 1875

The Popular Hair Dressing Room

Man to attend to Cottage Trade ASSISTANTS
Sterilized Instruments Used ——

Skilled Men in Attendance : DAN SULLIVAN JACK ADAMS

Calls from Hotels and Cottages

Promptly Attended to g HAZEN JORDAN  NED CASEY
Telephone 444—11 21 Cottage Street, BAR HARBOR, ME.

ARNO W. CLEAVES

LIVERY
Bridge Street, Bar Harbor

The Best Equipped Stable in Town
All Rubber Tired Carriages and Buckboards
Best of Horses, with Competent Drivers at Livery

Call or Telephone No. 111 at my expense. ARNO W. CLEAVES

EVERETT HUNTLEY

GARDENER

Lawns, Gardens, etc., Taken Care of by Day, Week or Season

GRADING AND LAWN WORK A SPECIALTY
14 Kavanagh Field, - - BAR HARBOR, MAINE

A. L. MMORGAN

DEALER IN

Beef, Lamb, Mutton, Poultry, Eggs

VEGETABLES, MILK AND FRUIT

TELEPHONE

32 West Street, BAR HARBOR, MAINE



NO. 1 MAIN STREET 23 COTTAGE STREET

A. E. SPURLING

BAKER

BAR HARBOR, MAINE

Vienna and French Bread and Rolls of all kinds. Lady Fingers, Macaroons,
Birthday Cakes, and Home Made Cake and Pastry of every description made to order
at short notice. .

ICx CREAM PARLOR AT 23 COTTAGE STREET

Ice Cream, College Ices and Banana Royals, Cakes, Lady Fingers and Macaroons
served with Ice Cream if desired. Orders taken for Ice Cream for Dinner Parties.
Retailed by the Quart or Galion.

F. J. NASH
generaf gnerc?\cméise

TaE Famous

“BEAN HOLE MAN”

Baked Beans Every Wednesday and Saturday
at four o’clock P.M.

136 Ledgelawn Avenue, BAR HARBOR, ME.

The Birch Tree Inn

9 GREELEY AVENUE
BAR HARBOR

Board by the Day or Week Telephone 273—11

WILLIAM GOSS, Proprietor



C. M. WILLEY
Pandscape Gardener and Goniractor

Plans and estimates furnished for Grounds, Drives and Paths. Also for Planting
Trees, Shrubs and Flowering Plants.

MEN. TEAMS AND MATERIALS FOR LANDSCAPE WORK
General Gardening and Lawn Work furnished at short notice, Day, Month or Season
TELEPHONE CONNECTION

20 ROBERTS AVENTUE, - BAR HARBOR, MAINE

TELEPHONE CONNECTION

H. E. WAKEFIELD

Painter

Paper Hanger and
Decorator

DEALER IN WALL PAPERS, PAINTS
OILS, VARNISHES, GLASS, ETC.

64 EDEN STREET, BAR HARBOR. ME.
MRS. C. M. WILLEY
and Fancy Goeds, Notions

HOSIERY, CORSETS, UNDERWEAR, ETC.
——Z'lw

44 School Street, - BAR HARBOR, MAINE




A.E.LAWRENGE Co.

General Contractors
and Builders———

NOS. 116 & 118 COTTAGE STREET
BAR HARBOR, MAINE

4/ .
*3T
AGCENTS FOR

PETER’S CARTRIDGES
CARBORUNDUM SHARPENING STONES
RUBEROID ROOFING
PITTSBURG PERFECT FENCE
PITTSBURG POULTRY WIRE
KEEN KUTTER TOOLS
PHOENIX HORSE SHOES
DEVOE’S PAINTS

SPORTINC COODS
GUNS, AMMUNITION, FISHING TACKLE

CARPENTERS’ TOOLS MASONS’ TOOLS
BLACKSMITHS’ TOOLS
CUTLERY

CONTINENTAL LAWN MOWERS
GARDEN BARROWS
HOSE AND LAWN SPRINKLERS




JULIUS KURSON
UP-TO-DATE GLOTHIER

HATS, CAPS
SHOES AND GENTS’ FURNISHINGS

Agent for W. L. Douglas Shoes

‘56 MAIN STREET

BAR HARBOR, = MAINE

TELEPHONE 468—2 CASH OR EASY TERMS

Standard Furniture Co.

DEALERS IN

FURNITURE OF ALL KINDS

Pictures, Carpeting, Straw Matting, Oil Cloth, Rugs, Stoves,
Kitchen Goods, Carriages and Go-Carts, etc.

74 Main Street, - BAR HARBOR, MAINE

PEARL POND

Manufacturer of and Dealer in

tranite Monuments and Building Work

38 COTTAGE ST., SHOP, HEAD OF RODICK ST., OFF COTTAGE ST.
BAR HARBOR, MAINE




The Elite Dry Cleansing Co.

(Methode Francaise)

Cleansing of Ladies’ and Gents’ Suits of all
kinds, Gloves, Chiffon and Fine Laces,
Curtains, Porticres, Blankets, ctc.

EVENING GOWNS AND FANCY WAISTS A SPECIALTY
Also, Fine Laundry Work

ALL WORK DONXE ON PREMISES SATISFACTION GUARANTEED
C. W. YEATON, Proprietor
15 NEWTON WAY TELEPHONE

BAR HARBOR, MAINE

RrR. E. STAN LEY
Plumbing, Steam and Gas Fitting

HOT WATER HEATING -
DEALER IN PLUMBERS MATERIALS

ALL WORK TO RECEIVE PERSONAL ATTENTION

15 Eden Street, - BAR HARBOR, MAINE

FRED C. SMALL REGINALD INGALLS

SMALL & INGALLS

handsecape Gardeners,
Excavating Contractors

LOAM, FILLING AND CRUSHED ROCK FOR SALE
TELEPHONE CONNECTION

18 HOLLAND AVENUE, - BAR HARBOR, MAINE



WILLIAM FENNELLY

DEALER 1IN

HARNESS

Blankets, Robes, Whips

Horse Furnishing Goods
Stable Outfittings
Trunks and Bags

THE LARGEST LINE AND THE FINEST
GOODS IN EASTERN MAINE

I buy direct from Manufacturers and Importers
and give the Lowest Prices

N
I.%
2 a8

148 Main St, BAR HARBOR, MAINE
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INTRODUCTION

The several municipalitics included in this work are situ-
ated in the southern part of Hancock County, Maine; Eden,
Mount Desert, Southwest Harbor and Tremont, all on the
Island of Mount Desert, and the Cranberry Isles, a few miles
off the entrance to Somes Sound.

The region in which they lie is one of the most picturesque
in our country, and it is rich in scenery of unusual wildness
and grandeur. It combines in a wonderful manner the attrac-
tions of ocean and mountain, and abounds in beautiful valleys
and lakes, which appeal irresistibly to every lover of the
beautiful in Nature.

Against the islands’ rugged cliffs and massive headlands,
still bold and steep in their primeval grandeur, the waters of
the ocean chafe in swelling surges and hurl themselves high
into the air, while towering high toward the heavens the
mountains loom aloft, straight almost from the level of the
sea, to form the highest elevations in eastern Maine. Over
all, the ~louds in their exquisite tints, and wonderful harmony
of color, blend and change at evening, while the broken, barren
mountains, slowly soften into blue, to become at sunset a
wonderful glory of erimson, amethyst and gold.

Centuries ago, the Indians made this beautiful region a
favorite resort; to this spot, too, nearly three centuries ago,
came the French Jesuit missionaries and their fellow
voyagers, when they sought new fields to conquer for the
glory of God and of France; here, also, in the wars for the
supremacy of the continent, the French and English found a
suitable eentre of rendezvous for their men and ships.
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The French and Indian wars having been ended by the
treaty of peace which followed Wolfe’s victory over Mont-
calm on the Plains of Abraham, the shores of Mount
Desert remained untrodden for a period of many years, until,
at length, a permanent settlement was made not long after
the middle of the eighteenth century, by pioneers from Massa-
chusetts Bay.

The purpose of this register is not to attempt an entirely
new and minutely detailed account of the romantic and stir-
ring history of Mount Desert, but to condense the most im-
_ portant facts into the space of ome or two hundred pages,
compact and readily accessible, that the history and family
directory, with the cottage and business directories may serve
as a ready-reference register of these towns.

We wish to acknowledge our indebtedness for historical
data to the excellent manuscripts of Mr. Eben L. Hamor, the
historian of Eden, to the late Rev. George E. Street’s compre-
hensive and intensely interesting ‘‘Mount Desert, a History,”’
to the records of the Maine Historical Society, to the Maine
Register, the town and church records, and those of the Adju-
tant-General of Maine, and to all the various sources from
which these faets have been derived.

To those who gave their subseriptions for the book, and to
the business men, who aided us by their advertisements, to
make the work financially successful, we extend our thanks.
We trust they will find the Register what we have endeavored
to make it—something of interest and of value.



INDIAN ACCOUNT

The Indians of eastern Maine were related by tribal con-
nections and by language to the Algonquin nation which occu-
pied most of the northern and eastern parts of the continent.
East of the Saco river these tribes were called the Abenaki,
though the English colonists often referred to them as the
Tarratines. Acecrding to Ventromile, the Jesuit missionary,
the proper form of Abenaki is Wabanaki, meaning ‘‘the people
of the place where the sky begins to look white in the morn-
ing,”” or ‘‘the people of the East.”’

The people of the Abenaki nation were divided into several

_tribes, each of which had its own villages and lands. The
Sokoki lived about the Saco river and Casco bay, the Nor-
ridgewocks on the upper Kennebee, the Penobscots on the
Penobscot river, and two tribes known to the early French in
this section as the Etchemins and Malecites, farther to the
east. Parkman’s description of the life of these tribes is as
follows: ‘‘In habits they were all much alike. Their villages
were on the waters of the Androscoggin, the Saco, the Kenne-
bee, the Penobscot, the St. Croix and the St. John; here in
spring they planted their corn, beans and pumpkins, and then,
leaving them to grow, went down to the sea in their birch
canoes. They returned towards the end of the summer,
gathered their harvest, and went again to the sea, where they
lived in abundance on ducks, geese, and other water-fowl.
During winter, most of the women, children and old men
remained in the villages, while the hunters ranged the forests
in chase of moose, deer, caribou, beavers and bears.’’

Though all of one nation and language, the Abenaki were
constantly engaged in civil war. Biard’s interpreters who
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accompanied him on the voyage of 1611, Indians of the Penob-
seot or Pasamaquoddy tribes, refused to accompany him be-
youd Monhegan, because their foes dwelt to the westward.

In the eighty-five years between 1675 and 1760 there were
thirty-six years of open and bitter warfare between the French
and Indians on the one hand and the English settlers on the
other. 'When peace intervened it was scarcely more than a
temporary armed truce.

The conflict between the English and the French who were
aided by their Indian allies was but the echo of the greater
wars which shook the continent of Europe. In this country,
it was not so much a succession of military campaigns as a
series of massacres and pillages finding cause not only in the
European wars that engaged the mother countries but also in
the local rivalries, hostilities and racial hate.

The bitterness of the Abenaki tribes toward the English is
explained by the fact that the latter usurped their lands, and
treated them with cruelty. They became the allies of the
French and the implacable foes of the English because the
former treated them as friends and equals, ‘‘opened their
eyes to religion, gave them good weight in trade,’’ were
honest and fair; whereas, on the other hand, the English fre-
quently robbed and killed them, though it cannot be denied
that the latter often had just cause.

Foray after foray, massacre after massacre, pillage and
flame ravaged the little settlements in Maine for more than a
hundred years. When the final peace came the Penobscots
had dwindled into insignificance and their united bands could
muster only seventy-three warriors. It is significant that the
first English settlers in this section in 1761 and later, make no
mention of Indians in this vicinity.



CHRONOLOGICAL EVENTS

1604 (Sept. 3). Isle des Monts Desert seex by Champlain,
in an exploring voyage along the coast.

1613 (March 12). Ship Jonas set sail from Honfleur, on
expedition to America, bearing Sieur de la Sausaye, the Jesuit
Father Quentin, the lay brother Gilbert du Thet and forty-
eight settlers, artisans and laborers. .

1613 (Two months later). The voyagers landed at Port
Royal, where they took on board Fathers Biard and Masse,
and after a delay of five days, set sail for a place called
Kadesquit on the Pentegoet (Penobscot River).

1613. Voyagers landed on Mount Desert, called by the
Indians, Pemetic. Settlement made at Fernald’s Point, at
the entrance of Somes Sound, Mount Desert; site of settlement
called Saint Sauveur.

1613 (Between May 16 and Nov. 9th). Settlement broken
up by Virginians, from the ship Treasurer of Jamestown,
commander, Samuel Argall.

1617. Hills of Mount Desert seen by Capt. John Smith,
and marked on his famous map of New England.

1676 (October). Thomas Cobbett, Jr., of Portsmouth,
taken prisoner by Indians, and carried to Mount Desert, where
he was held in captivity for nine weeks.

1688. Census of Governor Edmund Andros, giving ‘‘Names
of Inhabitants between the River Penobscot and St. Croix,”’
gives ‘““In Winskeage Bay, on the eastern side of Mount
Desert, Cadolick and wife.”” Cadolick was probably the Sieur
de la Mothe Cadillac who had received a grant of Mount
Desert, which was confirmed by King Louis XIV on May
25, 1689.
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1692. Cadillac drew up a report in which he deseribes the
island of Monts Deserts.

1692-96. Mount Desert employed as a place of rendezvous
for the French expeditions against New England.

1704. Mount Desert, a place of rendezvous for Colonel
Church’s fifth expedition against the French and Indians.

1740. Ship Grand Design, having on board a company
of North of Ireland emigrants, bound for Pennsylvania,
wrecked on Long Ledge at the entrance of the Western Way.
The ship’s company escaped and landed at Ship Harbor;
but many later died of exposure and hardship.

1761. Abraham Somes of Gloucester, Mass., with his wife,
Hapnah (Herrick) and four children, settled on George
Somes’ Point. James Richardson, also of Gloucester, with
his wife and five children settled soon afterward at Richard-
son’s Cove,

1762 (Feb. 27). The General Court of Massachusetts
granted to Governor Francis Bernard, one-half of the island
of Mount Desert. "

1762 (Oct. 2). Governor Bernard, on voyage to Mount
Desert, landed at South West Harbor.

1785 (June 23). The Massachusetts General Court grant-
ed one-half of the island to John Bernard, son of the former
governor, whose estates had been confiscated by the state.

1787 (July 7). The Legislature of Massachusetts granted
to Bartolemy and Maria Theresa de Gregoire, all the lands on
Mount Desert that remained in the possession of the state.

1789 (Feb. 17). Mount Desert incorporated a town.
Town included Mount Desert Island, Thompson’s Island, the
Two Thomas Islands, Bar Island, Baker’s Island, Bear Island,
Bartlett’s Island, Greening’s Island, the Cranberry Islands,
Moose Island, Sutton’s Island and Tinker’s Island.

1792 (Oect. 17). First church formed on Mount Desert
Island. This was organized as the Mount Desert Congrega-
tional Church.
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1796 (Feb. 22). Eden set off from Mount Desert and
incorporated a town.

1797. First meeting-house in Eden built at Hull’s Cove.

1799 (July 5). The Baptist Church of Eden, oldest in
Hancock County, organized.

1809. First vessel, the Schooner Hazard, Israel Higgins,
master, Samuel Hadlock, owner, built at Eden.

1812-14. Second War with England. Mount Desert vis-
ited by British.

1814 (August). Battle of Norwood’s Cove.

1828. Light house built at Baker’s Island; Wm. Gilley
appointed keeper.

1830 (March 10). The two Cranberry Islands, with Sut-
ton’s and Baker’s and Bear Islands, set off from Mount Desert
and incorporated as the town of Cranberry Isles.

1836-7. Bridge over the Narrows constructed; Capt. Wm.
Thompson and John M. Noyes, contractors; cost about $5,000.

1837. Meeting-house at Center (Tremont) erected.

1838. Bartlett’s, Hardwood, and Tinker’s or Robinson’s
Islands, set off from Mount Desert and incorporated into a
town by the name of Seaville. This act was repealed Feb. 24,
1859, and Bartlett’s Island was again made a part of Mount
Desert, while Hardwood and Tinker’s Island were annexed to
Tremont.

1848 (June 3). Mount Desert again divided and the
town of Mansel incorporated. (August 8). Name of the
town changed to Tremont.

1850. Pop. of Eden, 1127; Mt. Desert, 682; Tremont, 1425.

1852. Somesville meeting-house built.

1867. Tobias Roberts built the hotel Agamont, first sum-
mer hotel at Bar Harbor. First cottage built, Alpheus Hardy
purchasing Bireh Point of Stephen Higgins for $300.

1869. The Tremont and Ellsworth Telegraph Company
incorporated. The Bay View House, later the Grand Central,
built at Bar Harbor.
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1870. Eden, Pop., 1195; polls, 290; estates, $196,499; Mt.
Desert, Pop., 918; polls, 226; estates, $158,061; Tremont, Pop.,
1822; polls, 419; estates, $262,353; Cranberry Isles, Pop., 350;
polls, 36; estates, $61,514. Hotel Atlantic built, later Louis-
burg.

1871. First part of Hotel Newport built.

1873. Saint Sauveur rebuilt; Rockaway built; the Decring,
afterwards the Marlborough, built.

1874. The Ocean House erected.

1876. The Congregational Church of Somesville organized.

1878. Episcopal chapel built at Bar Harbor.

1879. The Hotel Belmont built.

1880. Eden, Pop., 1629; JMount Desert, Pop., 1017; polls,
243; estates, $160,803; Tremont, Pop., 2011; polls, 507 ; estates,
$361,419; Cranberry Isles, Pop., 343; polls, 98; estates, $52,063.
The West End Hotel at Bar Harbor built.

1881. Saint Sylvia’s, the first Catholic church, built at
Bar Harbor, opened for services.

1882 (August). Saint Sylvia’s consecrated by the Rt.
Rev. J. A. Healy, Bishop of Portland. A year or two later
in the pastorate of the Rev. Thos. F. Butler, the church edifice
was enlarged. (July 23). Saint Mary’s by the Sea (Episco-
pal), at Northeast Harbor, opened for worship, and (August
23), consecrated by Bishop Doane.

1883. Methodist church on School Street, Bar Harbor,
dedicated.

1885. Union meeting-house at Southwest Harbor built.

1886. Saint Saviour’s (Episcopal) at Bar Harbor, greatly
enlarged.

1887. Baptist church ou Ledgelawn Avenue, Bar Harbor,
built.

1888. New Methodist church, School street, erected.

1889 (June). Unitarian church, Bar Harbor, first occu-
pied. (July 17). Union meeting-house at Northeast Harbor
dedicated. Methodist church at Southwest Harbor built,
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1890. Eden, Pop., 1946; Mount Desert, Pop., 1355; polls,
354; estates, $570,005; Tremont, Pop., 2036; polls, 582; es-
tates, $635,979; Cranberry Isles, Pop., 330; polls, 114, estates,
$104,893.

1893 (April 8). Baptist church at Northeast Harbor or-
ganized. .

1895. Catholic church built at Northeast Harbor organ-
ized. Tremont Baptist church incorporated.

1897 (Dec. 9). Baptist church of Manset formed.

1900. Eden, Pop., 4,379; polls, 1,047; estates, $4,470,540;
Mount Desert, Pop., 1,600; polls, 422; estates, $932,724; Tre-
mont, Pop., 2,010; polls, 650; estates, $513,337; Cranberry
Isles, Pop., 374; polls, 124; estates, $119,751.

1900 (June 1). Y. M. C. A. opened at Bar Harbor.

1901 (June 6). Congregational church formed at Seal
Harbor. Catholic church at Northeast Harbor enlarged to
accommodate a congregation of about five hundred.

1902. New Episcopal church at Northeast Harbor conse-
crated.

1904. Meeting-house at Otter Creek, dedicated.

1905 (Feb.). Southwest Harbor set off from Tremont,
and incorporated a town.

1908. New high school built at Bar Harbor, one of the
most beautiful in Maine.



The Founding of Saint Sauveur

The island of Mount Desert is included in the region which
was the earliest occupied in New England. This section of
Maine, in the earliest years of our history, was under the juris-
diction of France, and, with Nova Scotia and New Bruns-
wick, bore the general name of Acadia.

Sullivan, the first historian of Maine, who wrote in 1795,
says: ‘‘In Acadia there was another territory, east of the
County of Newcastle, which was not comprehended in the
duke’s Province of New York. This was, perhaps, the ancient
Norumbegua. It extended from Pemaquid to St. Croix, com-
prehending Mount Mansel or Mount Desert, and the territory
of Penobscot.”” (Sul. History of Maine, 293).

The first settlement in Norumbega was made in 1604, on
a small island near the head of Passamaquoddy Bay, when
the chevalier De Monts, with his followers, having erected a
fort, chapel, and dwelling houses, passed a winter there. The
hardships which they suffered were so severe, however, that
of seventy-nine persons, only forty remained alive in the
spring. In the summer of 1605 De Monts abandoned the
settlement and after a voyage along the coast and a visit to
Port Royal he returned to France. The colonists remmoved to
Port Royal, and De Monts abandoned his attempt to plant a
colony in Norumbega.

In 1607, Henry IV confirmed the transfer of De Mont’s
right to Port Royal to M. de Poutrincourt, and while the latter
was making arrangements in behalf of his colony, an order
came to him from the King to make preparation for a mission
of the Jesuits there.
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The Society of Jesus, which had been founded by Ignatius
de Loyola in 1534, was at that time pushing forward with
zeal the movement sometimes known as the Catholic or
Counter-Reformation, which had, on the c¢ne hand, the pur-
pose of checking the Protestant Revolt and winning back to
the church those portions of Europe which had been influ-
enced by the Protestant movement, and on the other, that of
preaching the gospel to all non-Christian peoples. The
heathenism of the American Indians aecordingly prompted the
Jesuits to make great sacrifices and to endure terrible hard-
ships that the savages might be brought into the Christian
fold.

‘When the zealous Professor, Father Pierre Biard, learned
of Poutrincourt’s plans to found a colony at Port Royal, he
conceived the idea of establishing a mission there. Several
years elapsed, however, before Fathers Biard and Enemond
Masse were permitted to set out from France, as the Huguenot
merchants who held as security the ship in which they wished
to sail, refused to permit them to embark. Finally, through
the efforts of the Marchioness de Guercheville, wife of the
Governor of Paris, the claims of the Huguenots were paid,
and the Jesuits together with young Biancourt, son of Pou-
trincourt, to whim charge of the colony at Port Royal had been
given, set out upon their voyage. They arrived at their desti-
nation June 22, 1611, and within a month afterward Poutrin-
court sailed for France, never to return.

Ill-feeling arose between the clergy and the Governor,
which resulted in a separation and, in consequence of this, the
Marchioness de GQuercheville, who had become proprietor of
all Acadia except Port Royal, resolved to establish a mission
in another quarter where there would be no danger of inter-
vention on the part of Biancourt.

Enlisting a number of high personages in the enterprise,
she fitted out a vessel of a hundred tons’ burden, and placed
the expedition under the charge of Sieur La Saussaye, whom
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she had selected for Governor of the colony. The place fixed
upon for a settlement was Kadesquit, which, it is thought,
was Kenduskeag, the site of the present city of Bangor.

There were fifty persons in the company, among them the
Jesuits, Father Quentin, a priest, and M. du Thet. The ship
sailed from Honfleur, March 12, 1613, under command of
Charles Flory de Hableville, and made for Port Royal, which
it reached on the twenty-second of June. After a delay of
five days, the members of the company again embarked, taking
with them Fathers Biard and Masse, and set sail for their final
destination. When off Grand Menan, however, a dense fog
shut down upon the ship and for two days and nights they
drived upon the treacherous currents of the Bay of Fundy,
and, finally, out to sea. ‘‘Our tribulation,’” says Father Biard,
““led us to pray to God to deliver us from danger, and send
us to some place where we might contribute to His glory. He
heard us, in His mercy, for on the same evening we began to
discover the stars, and in the morning the fog had cleared
away. We then discovered that we were near the coast of .
Mount Desert, an island which the savages called Pemetic.
The pilot steered towards the eastern shore, and landed us in
a large and beautiful harbor. We returned thanks to God,
elevating the cross, and singing praises with the holy Sacrifice
of the Mass. We named the place and harbor Saint Sauveur.”’

The exact place of their landing is not known, but it is
thought that since it was on the ‘‘eastern shore,”” and in a
‘‘large and beautiful harbor,”’ and since we learn from Father
Biard’s narrative that it was several leagues (approximately
nine miles) to the Indian village, which is known to have been
located at the entrance of Somes Sound, the conclusion is
reached that, probably, the voyagers landed in the neighbor-
hood of Bar Harbor.

The pilgrims did not intend to remain long on Mount
Desert, so Father Biard had an interview with the Indians
for the purpose of obtaining information in regard to the
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route to Kadesquit. The natives had met the Father two
vears before at Pentagoet and knowing him they urged him
to settle on Mount Desert which they said was ‘‘quite as good
a place as Kadesquit,”’ that it was so healthy that it was the
resort of invalids who regained their health there. The Jesu-
its, however, could not be persuaded to remain until the sav-
ages, appealing to the humanity and religion of the mission-
aries, urged them to visit their chief. ‘It is important,”’ they
said, ‘‘that you should come. inasmuch as Asticou. our Saga-
more, is sick unto death, and if you do not come he will die
without Baptism and will not go to Ieaven; you will be the
cause. On his part, he wishes to be baptised.”” Moved by this
appeal, Father Biard consented to go; and with Sieur de la
Motte, mate of the Jonas, and Simon, the interpreter, he was
taken to the village in a canoe.

The illness of the chief proved nothing but a pretext, the
wily savages having made use of the device to induce the priest
view the place where they wished him to settle, hoping that
"he would be tempted by its attractiveness and beauty. The
device was quite successful, for the point opposite the village
seemed so ideal a place for the mission that Father Biard per-
suaded the leaders of the expedition to examine it. They did
so, and it was unanimously agreed to ‘‘stop there and seek
no further.”

Father Biard describes the place of settlement as ‘‘a pretty
colline, elevated above the sea, and bathed on its sides by
two springs. There are from twenty-five to thirty acres, cov-
ered with grass, which, in some places, reaches the height of
a man. It fronts the south and east. The soil is rich and
fertile. The harbor is as safe as a pond, for besides being
separated from the large island of Mount Desert, it is also
separated from certain small islets which break the winds and
the waves and fortify the entrance. There is no fleet for
which it would not be sufficient, nor vessel which could not
approach the land to unload within a cable’s length.”’
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Fernald’s Point at the entrance of Somes Island so closely
corresponds to this description that all the authorities agree
that it was there that the French settlement was made. _

The ship was moored in the harbor, the supplies were
landed, and the immigrants disembarked. Almost immedi-
ately a controversy arose between the governor and the mis-
sionaries, as to whether they should attend first to agriculture
or to the erection of fortifications. La Saussaye wished to pro-
vide against want ; the Jesuits against attack. Other differences
followed and little was accomplished. The dissensions were
brought to an untimely end, however, in a manner most unfor-
tunate for the colony.

In accordance with the custom of the English settlers in
Virginia, a fishing fleet had been sent north to fish in the
waters off the Maine coast. This fleet was under the convoy
of Samuel Argall in the Treasurer, a ship carrying sixty men
and fourteen guns. Argall was an enterprising but unscrupu-
lous man who had come to Virginia from England to engage
in sturgeon fishing. This was an illicit business, but Argall”
purchased silence from the colonists with bribes, and enjoyed
immunity from punishment.

On this expedition, fraught, as it afterwards proved, with
such ill fortune for the French on Mount Desert, Argall had
been instructed by Sir Thomas Dale, then Governor of Vir-
ginia, to expel any French and Dutch people he might find
trading within his jurisdiction, of which he considered Acadia
to form a part.

Argall’s vessel was cruising in the Gulf of Maine, when
some Indians came on board the ship, in a fog, and innocently
told him that a number of his ‘“Norman’’ countrymen were
establishing a settlement at Pematic. The wily Englishman,
detaining one of the Indians for a pilot, set all sail for the
‘‘safe’’ harbor of the French, and soon swooped down upon
the settlers in Somes Sound. Argall wasted no time in carry-
ing out his purpose, but at once made an attack. Father
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Biard’s narrative of the fight which ensued, is as follows:

‘““Now, we, beholding the vessel coming under full sail
from a distance, did not know what to think, whether they
were friends or enemies, Frenchmen or foreigners, for this
reason—the pilot went in advance in a long boat, to recon-
noitre, while the others armed themselves. La Saussaye re-
mained on shore, and retained there most of his men. La
Motte, lieutenant, Bonfere, ensign, and Joubert, sergeant, all
the most resolute, went to the vessel. Thus it was, then, that
one could recognize men of value.

‘““The English vessel came more rapidly than an arrow,
having a good wind—all the soldiers clothed in scarlet, the
English colors flying, and three drums and trumpets making
a furious noise. Our pilot, who had gone to make discoveries,
did not return with the vessel, because, he said, the English
were to windward of him, and, consequently, in order not to
fall into their hands, he made the circuit of an island. On
this occasion, therefore, our vessel was destitute of half its
crew, and for the defense there were only ten in all, and not
any of them knew anything about sea fights, except Capt.
Flory, who was not wanting in ability and courage, but he
had neither sufficient time to prepare himself, nor sufficient
men; on account of which he was not able to weigh anchor,
the sails being used for another purpose. As it was summer,
and as we remained in this harbor without fear, we had ex-
tended the sails in the form of a bower, from the poop to the
windlass, in order to have a shade upon the deck, and there
was not sufficient time to bend them. But this misfortune
was lucky for us, as our men remained very well concealed
during the combat, in such manner that the English, not being
able to pick out any one during their volleys, less of our men
were killed and wounded.

‘“At the approach, as it is the custom to call and ask who
one is, our people cried out, according to the custom of mar-
iners, ‘O! O!” But the English did not respond in this tone,
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but in another more furious, with heavy discharges of muskets
and cannon. They had fourteen pieces of artillery and sixty
musketeers connected with the ship, who came to the charge
upon the sides, upon the bowsprit, upon the poop and wherever
it was necessary, like a line of soldiers and in order, as well
as foot soldiers do upon the land.

““The first volley from the English side was terrible; the
whole vessel was in fire and smoke. From our side we re-
sponded coldly, and the artillery was silent. Captain Flory
cried loudly:

‘“ ‘Fire the cannon! Let it go!’

‘“‘But the gunner was not there. Now Gilbert du Thet, who
was never faint-hearted in his life, nor a coward, hearing this
cry and seeing no one obey, took the match and caused our
cannon to speak as loud as the enemy’s. The misfortune was
that he did not take aim, and if he had done so there would
have been, perhaps, something more than noise.

““‘The English, after this first volley, laid their vessel along-
side and kept an anchor ready to hook the bits of our cable,
which stopped the enemy and caused him to cut off from our
side, for he feared in pursuing us to be drawn into shoal
water; then, becoming re-assured, he again commanded to
approach us with a volley of musquetry as before. It seems,
in this second attack, that Father du Thet received a musket
ball through the body and fell upon the deck. Captain Flory
was also wounded in the foot, and three others elsewhere,
which caused us to give the signal and to ery that we would
surrender, as certainly the match was not equal. At this
cry, the English jumped into our boat in order to come to our
vessel; our men also, from an unlucky resolution, threw them-
selves into their own to make for the shore, for they feared
the arrival of the victors. The conqueror was on board our
vessel before they had gone far, and prayed and called to them
to return, and, to constrain them, fired upon them. Being
frightened, two of our men cast themselves into the water, by



THE FOUNDING OF SAINT SAUVEUR 33

my advice, to gain the shore, but they were drowned. Either
they were wounded, or, what is more probable, they were
struck and killed in the water. These were two young men
of good expectations, one from Dieppe, called Le Moine; the
other named Neveu, of the city of Beauvais. Their bodies
were not found until nine days afterward. They were taken
and religiously interred. Such was the capture of our vessel.””

Following his victory, Argall landed, and having found in
the half-finished fort La Saussaye’s'strong-box which contained
all the papers and credentials of the French, he appropriated
them and then, secure in the possession of these documents,
he denounced La Saussaye as a trespasser and justified his
attack on that ground. The French governor denied the
charge and claimed to be acting under commissions from the
crown. Argall, thereupon, demanded that the commissions be
produced and since La Saussaye could not produce his author-
ity, he was denounced as a pirate and the English were given
full liberty to pillage the French ships and camp. Argall was
severe with his prisoners, and at length, after two had been
flogged, he reduced all to subordination. Some of the prison-
ers were taken to Jamestown, some were permitted to return
to France. Father Biard and Quentin went to Jamestown,
La Saussaye and Father Masse to France.

At Saint Sauveur the Englishmen pulled down the Jesu-
its’ cross and razed the unfinished defenses. Thus, the earli-
est settlement of Mount Desert was blotted out. More than
one and a half centuries were to elapse before a permanent
settlement would be made up on its rock-bound shores.

(Sources—Collections of the Me. Hist. Society, Vol. VIII,
Relations of the Jesuits, Chap. 24, History of Mount Desert,
Street, ‘‘Saint Sauveur.’’)



MILITARY HISTORY

THE REVOLUTIONARY WAR

The military history of Mount Desert antedates that of any
of the towns on the island, since it was not for several years
after the Revolution closed that the Plantation of Mount
Desert became a town.

It is recorded that a number of the residents of the island
left their homes to join the Continental forces and to do their
share toward the winning of the independence of the colonies.
David Richardson served one month as a private; Jonathan
Rodick served one month and eighteen days in Capt. Dan’l Sul-
livan’s company, which went to Machias in 1777 and 1778.
In the expedition against Majorbagaduce (Castine), in 1779,
- were: Levi Higgins, lieutenant; Elisha Cousins, sergeant ;
Timothy Smallidge, corporal; Israel Higgins, Daniel Richard-
son and Jabez Salisbury, privates. These men probably
served two months.

In Captain Sullivan’s company in the* sixth regiment of
militia, which went into service by order of Colonel John
Allen in October, 1780, were: James Campbell, clerk; Jon-
athan Doane and Freeman Knowles, privates. Other Revolu-
tionary soldiers were: Joseph Mayo, Ephraim Haynes, and
Col. Cornelius Thompson, a resident of Thompson’s Island,
who was at one time during the war, captain of the privateer
brig, Chase, and, also, an officer in the militia.
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THE WAR OF 1812

The inhabitants of Mount Desert, like the residents of
several other localities on the Maine coast, suffered greatly
during the Second War with England from the depredations
of the British. Capt. Amariah Leland, who was building a
small vessel near Emery’s Cove, was compelled by a British
privateer to pay $500 or have his vessel burned. William
Mason and Thomas Paine were fired at one day by the crew
of an English barge, and Mason was mortally wounded.
William Thompson, William Wasgatt, and Elisha Young were
taken by the English to Halifax, where Wasgatt and Young
were held for a time as prisoners of war, while Thompson
was carried to England and imprisoned there until the war
was over.

The Battle or Skirmish of Norwood’s Cove was the most
important event of the war so far as Mount Desert was con-
cerned. It was in August, 1814, that the Tenedos, British
sloop of war, sailed in through the Eastern Way and anchored
between Bear and Sutton Islands. Immediately preparations
were made by the islanders to resist attack. Two young men
from Great Cranberry rowed over to Southwest Harbor and
travelled all night to give the alarm to the people on Mount
Desert. All through the night the mustering at the scene of
action went on. Old and young joined for the common de-
fense, even the aged Jacob Lurvey and John Richardson, vet-
erans of the Revolution, coming out to take a hand in the
fight.

The late Dr. Street, whose story of skirmish, which was pub-
lished in the Northeast Harbor and Seal Harbor Herald of
Sept. 19, 1905, is contained in his ‘‘History of Mount
Desert,”’” gives an account of it in these words:

“‘The battle proved to be short in duration and at very
short range. In the early dawn of Tuesday, August 9, a
twelve-oared launch, full of men, with a swivel-gun in the
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bows, left the warship and drew in toward Clark’s Point.
Another smaller barge followed. The combatants were near
enough to converse, to chaff with and challenge each other
before the skirmish began. The militia were in the dense
thicket along the shore, but every now and then one of them
would run out on the rocks, or warn the invaders that the
woods were full of men and they would be routed. Especially
when the form of the brave Captain Spurling was seen in the
barge, an effort was made to save his life by urging the Brit-
ish to give up their undertaking. One of his soms, Robert,
rushed out on the high rocks below the present Downs cottage.
His plea was most earnest to have his father spared. The
officer bade his oarsmen lay to their oars, and ordered the old
captain to be crowded down in the bottom of the barge. There
the soldiers walked over him, or on him, as best suited their
mood, until he raised himself up, said he might as well die
one way as another, and cried back to his son and the men on
the shore, ‘‘Never mind me, Rob, I am an old man; but give it
to these dashed Britishers as hard as you can.”” Through an
opening in the thicket the British caught sight of a man
coming up from the Point with a bag over his shoulders laden
with bullets. It was Captain Nathan Clark. They fired at
him, but missed the mark. ‘‘Better grease your dashed old
muzzles and try again,”’ was his retort. The militia fired
from behind some natural breastworks covered with a thicket
above. This enabled them to rest their guns, pick their men,
at the same time to be themselves unseen. The reply from
the barge’s pivot-gun, though meant to be most sweeping and
devastating, went wild, high overhead, breaking branches,
hitting rocks, but wounding no one. Even the British musket
fire, aimed at men behind trees on the south side of the cove,
filled the trees with bullets, but hit nobody. Isaac Lurvey for
years afterward showed the tree he stood behind, riddled with
seventeen bullets above his head.

It soon became evident to the British commander, who had
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not yet really entered the cove, that his men were simply
targets for the marksmen, who were invisible if not invul-
nerable, and that he had wholly underrated their capacity for
defense, so he ordered his barges to draw off, with their kiiiea
and wounded. It was noticed that five instead of twelve
were at the oars as they rowed away. As to the losses of thé
British, the only data we have is the testimony of two boys,
who, like boys of to-day, were apt to be around when not
wanted, using their eyes. These boys, sons of William Moore,
living near the present site of the Burnham cottage on Sut-
ton’s Island, had gone aboard the Tenedos to sell raspberries.
They were on board when the defeated barge came back with
its dead. They saw seven lifeless bodies raised by tackles and
slowly let down into the hold of the ship. On the American
side the only damage was that Captain Samuel Hadlock of
Little Cranberry had two fingers grazed by a bullet.”

THE WAR OF THE REBELLION

The great struggle of the Rebellion was the true test of
the spirit and patriotism of the people of the towns in this
section of the North, and as in all the former struggles the
citizens here were not found wanting. Scarcely had Fort
Sumpter capitulated and the President’s call for volunteers
been received throughout the North than the names of men of
Mount Desert were on the enlistment rolls, and the soldiers
were ready to march to the front. Their acts of bravery were
recorded on many a hard fought field during the four years’
struggle. In field, in camp, in hospital, they showed their
worth as men, and their bravery and heroism never has and
never can be questioned.

The roll-call of the soldiers of the Civil War will be found
in the history of each of the several towns. The lists, except
a few additional names, were obtained from the files 1n the
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Adjutant-General’s office at Augusta. In these lists will be
found the names of many who are numbered with the dead,
for very many of them lost their lives in the service of their
country, and many others have since joined their comrades in
the Great Unknown. It is not necessary here to recount in
detail the services which these men rendered in the four long
years of suffering and conflict. It is all familiar to the people
of this town, sons and daughters, of the noble men who left
their homes and loved ones to do their share for the cause of
Liberty and Right. The people of this town knowing the
record, glory in the fact that the response was ready and
loyal, and that their fathers were not afraid to go forth to
battle and, if necessary, to die. Let us but remember as we
read the lists, that we owe all that we possess to them, and,
let us linger a moment over the roll of the brave and frue
soldiers whose names are recorded here.



History of the Town of Mount Desert

Mount Desert, the oldest of the townships on Mount Desert
Island, and the second among them in population and wealth,
occupies the central part of the island, lying between
Eden on the northeast and Tremont on the southwest. It
originally embraced the entire island of Mount Desert, and
the adjacent islands, and was incorporated a town, Feb. 17,
1789. i

The principal villages are Northeast Harbor and Seal Har-
bor, both of which are celebrated summer resorts, Mount
Desert (Somesville), and Sound Villages, at the head of
Somes’ Sound, Hall Quarry, noted for the production of
granite, and Otter Creek, part of which is in Eden and part
in Mount Desert.

Northeast Harbor and Seal Harbor enjoy the same steamer
facilities as does Bar Harbor, while Mount Desert (small
steamer also on the Sound) and Hall Quarry, are connected
by stage with Bar Harbor, Southwest Harbor and Bass Harbor
in Tremont. Mount Desert and Sound are connected by stage
with Northeast Harbor. The population of the town in 1900
was 1600. It has since fallen off at Hall Quarry, but has
increased at Northeast Harbor and Seal Harbor. which are be-
coming more and more popular as vacation resorts. The
valuation of Mount Desert is now about $1,000,000.

EARLY SETTLEMENT

Abraham Somes, the pioneer settler in Mount Desert, was
born at Gloucester, Mass.,, March 17, 1732. He was the son
of Abraham and Martha Emerson Somes of Gloucester and
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was fourth in descent from Morris and Margerie Somes, who
were among the first settlers of Gloucester.

Abraham Somes married Hannah, dau. of Samuel Herrick
of Gloucester, Dec. 25, 1753. The Somes family settled on
George Somes Point, Mount Desert, in 1761. DMr. Somes was
one of the first Board of Selectmen, and always took an influ-
ential part in town affairs. Mrs. Somes died March 16, 1790,
and four years later, Abraham Somes m. Mrs. Joanna Beal,
widow of Edward Beal of Union River. The latter died Dec.
17, 1731. Mr. Somes lived to be over eighty years of age.

Children by first marriage:

1. Hannah, b. Sept. 16, 1754; m. Samuel Reed of Sedgwick; res.
Somesville.

2. Patty, b. Dee. £4, 1756; m. James Fly; res. Surry, Brooklin and
Trenton, where he d. Dee., 1801. She d. April, 1846.

3. Luey, b. May 4, 1759; m.-Nicholas Thomas; res. Thomas District,
Eden.

4, Prudenee, b. June 23, 1761; m. Abraham Reed; res. Sedgwick.

5. Abraham, b. 1763; m. Rachel Babson; res. Somesville. His sons,
Isaac and Geo. B., res. Somesville.

6. Marcey; b. 1765; m. Ameziah Dodge; moved to Ohio; d. July 12,
1845,

7. John, b. 1767; m. Judith Richardson; res. Somesville.
.. 8. Daniel, b. 1770; m. Clarissa Beal; res. Somesville. Two of their
children settled at Somesville.

9. Louis, b. 1772; m. Dodge of Sedgwick.

10. James, b. 1774; m. Betsey Gott; res. Beach Hill and Solon, Me.

11. Jacob, b. 1777; unmarried; lost at sea.

12. Betty, b. 1779; m. Wm. W. Thorn; res. Oak Hill.

13. Isaac, b. 1781; m. Sally Kittridge of Billerica.

John Somes, second son of Abraham and Hannah, settled
at Somesville. He married Judith Richardson, Jan. 6, 1793.

He served as representative in the Massachusetts legislature,
1815-1818.

Children: '

1. Johm, Jr., b. 1794; m. Julia Kittridge; res. Somesville. He was the
first postmaster of Mount Desert.
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2. Judith, b. 1796; m. Eben Babson; res. Somesville.

3. Jacob, b. 1799; m. Rebecca Seavy; res. Somesville. Representative
and State Senator. ’

4. Abrabam, b. 1801; m. Adline Freeman; res. Somesville.

5. Benjamin, b. 1804; d. unmarried.

6. Emily, b. 1806; m. John M. Moyes; res. Somesville and Massachu-
setts.

7. Julian, b. 1810; 4. May 20, 1812.

James Richardson, of Gloucester, settled in Mount Desert,
soon after the arrival of Abraham Somes. He was a son of
Stephen and Jane (Montgomery) Richardson, who eame from
Londonderry, Ireland, to Gloucester, Mass., in 1738. James,
b. about 1730, m. Rachel Gott, March 19, 1752. Mr. Richard-
son, who was an enterprising, industrious man, erected a mill
at the head of the sound, and carried on lumbering operations
in connection with farming. He was the first clerk of the
plantation, and served also as town clerk for many years. He
d. Deec. 12, 1807. His wife d. March 22, 1814. ‘

Their children:

1. Rachel, b. 1752; m. Davis Wasgatt; res. Beech Hill

2. James, b. 1754; m. (1) Hannah Sargent, (2) Mrs. Hannah Gil-
patrick of Trenton; res. Northeast Harbor.

3. Daniel, b. 1756; m. Sarah Cousins; res. Hadley’s Point.

4. Jane, b. 1738; m. Nicholas Thomas (second wife); res. Eden.

5. Mary, b. 1761; m. Ezra H. Dodge. -

6. George, b. Aug. 16, 1763, first white child born on Mount Desert;
m. (1) Lucy Pendexter, (2) Mrs. Betsey Simmons; res. head of Sound.

7. David, b. 1765; m. Molly Steel; res. Somesville. He was a justice
of the peace. . . .

8. Judith, b. 1767; m. John Somes; res. Somesville.

9. Isaac, b. 1770; d. in Boston, Aug. 12, 1796.

10. Tamson, b. 1772; m. Geo. Freeman; res. Pretty Marsh.

11. Rhoda, b. 1774; m. Reuben Freeman; res. Pretty Marsh.

Andrew Tarr of Gloucester was one of the first settlers.
He located finally near Fernald’s Point, his lot being to the
north of Norwood’s Cove. His daughter, Comfort, married
Tobias Fernald of Kittery, who inherited the Tarr estate, and
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erected a substantial dwelling on the Point. Their son,
Ebenezer, who married Sophronia Wasgatt, lived and died on
the estate, leaving it to his sons, Rev. Oliver H. and Prof. Chas.
H. Fernald.

Davis Wasgatt, m. Rachel, dau. of James Richardson, and
later, cleared a farm on Beech Hill. Mr. Wasgatt was a
sturdy, vigorous man and soon became a leading man in the
community. Their children:

1. Davis, b. 1775, at No. 1; m. Sally Hadlock; res. Northeast Harbor.
2. Rachel, b. 1776, at No. 1; m. Simeon Milliken; res. Hardwood
Island, then in Trenton.
3. Corrnelius, b. at Brimfield, Mass., 1778.
Tamson, b. at Monson, Mass., 1780.
Rufus, b. at Monson, Mass., 1781; d. 1783.
Sarah H., b. at Mongon, Mass., 1784.
Rufus, b. at Trenton, 1786; m. Suky Gott.
Hannah R., b. at Trenton, 1788.
9. David, b. 1790 at Mt. Desert; res. Beech Hill.
10. Asa, b. 1793, at Mt. Desert; m.
11. Margaret T., b. 1796, at Mt. Desert; m.
12. Jason, b. 1798, at Mt. Desert; m. Abigail Rodick; res. Cromwell’s
Harbor.

[ Sl

Ephraim Pray, and Reuben and George Freeman, with
their families, settled at Pretty Marsh prior to 1785.

In 1789, the voters of Mount Desert subscribed to an oath
of allegiance, and we are thereby afforded practically a com-
plete list of the adult male inhabitants of the town at that
time.

The document follows:
Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Lincoln, ss;

In the thirteenth year of the Independence of the United
States of America.

We, the subscribers, severally do truly and sincerely
acknowledge, profess, testify, and declare that the Common-
wealth of Massachusetts is and of right ought to be a free,
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sovereign and independent State, and we do swear that we
will bear true faith and allegiance to the said Commonwealth
and that we will defend the same against traitorous conspira-
cies and all hostile attempt whatsoever; and that we do re-
nounce and abjure all allegiance, subjection and obedience to
the King of Great Britain and every other foreign power
whatsoever, and that no foreign Prince, prelate, State or
potentate hath, or ought to have, any jurisdiction, superiority,
pre-eminence, authority of dispensing, or other power in any
matter, civil, ecclesiastical or spiritual within this Common-
wealth, or may be, vested by their constituents in the Congress
of the United States; and we do further testify and declare
that no man, or body of men, hath, or can have, any right to
absolve or discharge us from the obligation of this oath,
declaration or affirmation, and that we do make this acknowl-
edgement, profession, testimony, declaration, denial, renuncia-
tion and abjuration, heartily and truly according to the com-
mon meaning and acceptation of the foregoing words without
any equivocation, mental evasion or secret reservation what-
soever. So help us God.

Cornelius Thompson John Cousins
James Richardson Gideon Mayo
Stephen Richardson Joseph Hodgdon
Andrew Tarr Israel Higgins, Jr.
Abraham Somes Reuben Freeman, Jr.
Davis Wasgatt John Manchester
Levi Higgins Israel Higgins
James Richardson, Jr. Andrew Tucker
Ezra Young Jesse Higgins
David Bartlett John Hamor

Ezra Leland Eleazer Higgins
Joshua Norwood Benjamin Atherton
Elkanah Young Reuben Noble

John Somes Timothy Smallidge
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Sylvanus Leonard
Peter Stanley

For the year 1790.

Elisha Cousins
Samuel Milliken
Joseph Mayo
William Heath
Ezra H. Dodge
John G. Richardson
David Hamor
Joseph Hopkins
David Rodick
Philip Langley
Stephen Salisbury
Israel” Bartlett
Daniel Somes
Nathaniel Bennet
Simeon Hadley
Jacob Reed
Peter Gott

John Rich
Samuel Reed
Henry Knowles
Nathaniel Marcyes
Richard Heath
David Higgins
Elias Bartlett’
Samuel Bowden
Robert Young
Nicholas Thomas
John Thomas, Jr.
Solomon Higgins
Ephraim Pray
Christopher Bartlett
Benjamin Ward

MOUNT DESERT

George Richardson
Jacob Lurvee
Faranton S. Farrell
Reuben Freeman
Thomas Richardson
Joseph Gott

Peter Dolliver °
William Roberts
Daniel Tarr

James Reed

Moses Ladd

John McKinsey
William Gilley
David Higgins, Jr.
Joshua Mayo
Samuel Hull

John Rich, Jr.
David Richardson
George Butler
David Wasgatt, Jr.
Ephraim Pray, Jr.
Aaron Sawyer
Thomas Manchester
William Norwood
Jonathan Hadlock -
Bither Jordan
George Freeman
Enoch Richardson
Weleh Moor
George Harmon
William Nutter
Joseph M. Ober
Tobias Fernald
Daniel Gott, 2nd
Simeon B. Milliken
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Amos FEaton Isaac Mayo

Ebenezer Leland Isaac Ober

Thomas Wasgatt Samuel Milliken
Ebenezer Salisbury Timothy Smallidge, 2nd

Samuel Hadlock

INCORPORATION

An act for incorporating the Plantation of Mount Desert,
so-called, in the county of Lincoln into a town by the name of
Mount Desert.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives
m General Court assembled and by the authority of the same
that the Plantation called Mount Desert, together with the
islands called Cranberry Islands, Bartlett’s Island, Robertson’s
Island and Beech Island, together with the inhabitants thereof
be, and they hereby are, incorporated into a town by the
name of Mount Desert, and the said town is hereby vested
with all the privileges and immunities which other towns in
this Commonwealth by law do, or may, enjoy.

....And be it further enacted that Gabriel Johonnot, Esq., be,
and hereby is, empowered to issue his warrant directed to
some principal inhabitant of the said town, requiring him to
notify the inhabitants thereof to meet at such time and place
as he shall therein appoint, to choose all such officers as towns
are by law required to choose at their meetings in the month
of March or April, annually.

In the House of Representatives Feb ye 16th, 1789. This
bill had three several readings and passed to be enacted.

WILLIAM HEATH Speaker Pro Tem.

In Senate February 17, 1789. This bill having had two
several readings, passed to be enacted.

. SAMUEL PHILLIPS, President.
Approved. JOHN HANCOCK, Governor.
A true copy. JOHN AVERY, Secretary.
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TOWN OFFICERS SINCE 1850

Clerks

1850-2, Abraham Somes; 1853, Isaac Somes; 1854, E. E.
Babson; 1855, Horatio S. Seavey; 1856-7, E. E. Babson; 1858-9,
Abraham Somes; 1860-1, H. S. Seavey; 1862, Lewis Somes, JT.;
1863, Abraham Somes; 1864-73, E. E. Babson; 1874, Lyman H.
Somes.

Selectmen

1850-1—John M. Noyes, John Richardson, John S. Jordan.
1852—John M. Noyes, Benj. Thom, Lewis Freeman.
1853—Isaac Somes, J. S. Jordan, Lewis Freeman.

1854—J. M. Noyes, Daniel Kimball, Sibley P. Richardson.
1855—John H. Parker, S. P. Richardson, Stephen Southard.
1856—John M. Noyes, Daniel Kimball, Edw S. Richardson.
1857—David Wasgatt, Wm. S. Richardson, Emerson Googin.
1858-9—John M. Noyes, Daniel Kimball, Benj. Thom.
1860—John M. Noyes, Daniel Kimball, Decatur Dawse.
1861—Thos. Mayo, John H. Parker, Stephen Southard.
1862—Daniel Somes, Wm. 8. Richardson, David Branscom.
1863-4—John M. Noyes, John W. Somes, John C. Manchester.
1865—John W. Somes, Daniel Somes, Alden H. Jordan.
1866—Daniel Somes, John S. Jordan, Thaddeus S. Somes.
1867—T. S. Somes, John S. Jordan, Daniel Somes.
1868—Jonathan Hamor, Thos. Mayo, Franklin B. Roberts.
1869—dJohn W. Somes, Daniel Somes, H. S. Seavey.

1870—T. S. Somes, Daniel Somes, Augustus C. Savage.
1871—David Branscom, H. S. Seavey, Lyman Smith.
1872-3—T. S. Somes, Daniel Somes, Chas E. Southard.
1874—John W. Somes, T. S. Somes, Chas. H. Clement.
1875—John W. Somes, T. S. Somes, Amos Clement.

1876—T. S. Somes, C. J. Hall, Amos Clement.

1877—C. J. Hall, A. Clement, T. S. Somes.

1878—Jonathan Hamor, Thaddeus S. Somes, Loren E. Kimball.
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1879—T. S. Somes, J. Hamor, J. S. Sargent.
1880—Jonathan Hamor, Obadiah Allen, John S. Sargent.
1881-—J. Hamor, Obadiah Allen, John S. Sargent.
1882—J. Hamor, Jason C. Hill, John S. Sargent.
1883—J. Hamor, Jason C. Hill, John S. Sargent.
1884—T. S. Somes, Stephen Smallidge, John S. Sargent.
1885—T. S. Somes, Stephen Smallidge, Calvin B. Ober.
1886—T. S. Somes, J. Hamor, Wm. H. Freeman.
1887—T. S. Somes, Stephen Smallidge, Wm. H. Freeman.
1888—dJonathan Hamor, Stephen Smallidge, Wm. H. Freeman.
1889—T. S. Somes, Stephen Smallidge. Ezra G. Mason.
1890—T. S. Somes, Stephen Smallidge, Ezra G. Mason.
1891—Ezra G. Mason, Stephen Smallidge, Lymar: H. Somes.
1892—Liyman H. Somes, Stephen Smallidge, Winfield S. Small-
idge.
1893—Lyman H. Somes, Wm. H. Freeman, Chas. H. Clements.
1894—Lyman H. Somes, Edgville G. Abbott, Geo. A. Savage.
1895—Lyman H. Somes, Geo. A. Savage, Geo. A. Savage.
1896-7—L. H. Somes, Geo. A. Savage, Wm. H. Freeman.
1898—L. H. Somes, Geo. A. Savage, Eugene M. Richardson.
1899-1900—L. H. Somes, Geo. A. Savage, Merritt T. Ober.
1901—L. H. Somes. M. T. Ober, L. Elrie Holmes.
1902—1L. H. Somes, Geo. A. Savage, Fred H. Macomber.
1903—L. H. Somes, F. H. Macomber, H. Edwin Stanley.
1904-5—L. H. Somes, L. Elrie Holmes, Warren H. Whitmore.
1906-8—Geo. A. Savage, W. H. Whitmore, Jos. W. Small.
1909—Edwin S. Atwood, Ernest A. Atwood, Jos. W. Small.

MOUNT DESERT IN THE REBELLION

Tileston W. Atherton, 3d Regt.; Thos. M. Wasgatt and
Jared R. Reed, Co. H, 4th Regt.; J. E. Billings, A. L. Brown,
Geo. F Heath. Lewis F. Heath, Geo. S. Ingalls, I. K. Richardson,
Reuben Smith, Jr., all of Co. G, 8th Regt.; Emery C. Pierce,
10th Regt.; Lewis H. Bracy, Co. H; L. E. Durbin, John F.
Young, Co. H, all of 11th Regt.
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12th Regt., Leonard Norton, Co. A.

14th Regt., Nathan G. Wasgatt, Co. A.

15th Regt., Erastus Babbidge, Stephen Richardson, Tyler
Richardson (reenlisted in a Mass. Regt.), all of Co. I.

1st Cavalry—Thos. Day, Chas. B. Gilley, Edwin M. Hig-
gins, Wm. H. Holmes, Lemuel R. Lurvey.

1862 and later, 1st H. Art., Co. C—Jas. M. Parker, Mark T.
Richardson, Benj. T. Atherton, Stillman Smith, John A. Smith,
Elijah H. Wasgatt, Samuel T. Savage, T. M. Mason, Harrison
Fogg, John A. Rodick.

26th Regt., Co. E—Orlando Richardson, S. S. Wasgatt,
Jos. H. Grant, Harvey D. Lear, J. W. Bracy, F. G. Bartlett,
Chas. W. Bracy, H. N. Higgins, Amos S. Brown. .

10th Regt., Co. H—Lyman Smith.

31st Regt., Co. D—Stephen Smallidge, A. J. Butler, Geo.
‘W. Butler, Jacob Lunt, Jr., I. N. Mason, Jos. Robinson, A. H.
Salisbury, Chas. E. Wasgatt.

1st Me. Cavalry—H. D. Pray, Co. H; John Gilley (reen-

listed), Co. D.
' 8th Regt., Co. G—I. H. Richardson, Reuben Smith, A. L.
Brown, L. F. Heath, Jared R. Reed, H-4th; B. T. Richardson,
C-1st H. Art.; John F. Fogg, G-2d Cav. (Bangor); Thos. Sav-
age, Chas. Southard, A. H. Jordan, Joseph Coarson, Chauncey
0. Noyes, Tth Mass., reenlisted in 31st Me.

The following soldiers are not included in the list given
above: Horace D. Roberts (deceased), enl. in Mount Desert;
John J. Smith, enl. in Mass.; Hosea I. Joy, L-2d Regt. (widow
resides in Mount Desert).
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CHURCH HISTORY
Congregationalists

The Congregational Religious Society of Mount Desert was
organized at Somesville, in 1840, that village having succeeded
Southwest Harbor as the eenter of religious life. The parish
embraced practically the whole island except Eden, and it
included even Cranberry Isles. The meeting-house at Somes-
ville was built in 1852.

The Congregational Church of Somesville was organized
Dee. 21, 1876, with ten members drawn mainly from the First
Church.

The first pastor of this church was Rev. A. R. Plumer, who
served during the year 1877. Succeeding pastors have been:
Revs. A. Redlon, 1879; Albert N. Jones, 1880-3; J. E. Swallow,
1884-6; H. R. MecCartney, 1888, 1890; E. E. Newbert, 1891;
Fred Baker, 1896; Frank W. Barker, 1897-8; Geo. E. Kinney,
1900-3. Rev. Elias A. Jenkins, the present pastor, is a gradu-
ate of the Bangor Theological Seminary. He came to the
church in the summer of 1908.

Congregational work was begun at Seal Harbor by Rev.
Charles Whittier of the Maine Missionary Society in 1887. A
student preacher was engaged for the summer and he re-
mained until January, when Rev. Alexander P. McDonald, a
graduate of Bowdoin College and the Andover Theological
Seminary, who had preached at North Waterford, East Stone-
ham and Wiscasset, was called to take charge. A parish was
incorporated, and on June 6, 1901, a church of twelve members
was organized. A meeting-house was erected at a cost of
$6500. It was dedicated August 31, 1902.

A Congregational Church of twelve members was organ-
ized at Otter Creek, July 15, 1901, largely through the efforts
of the Rev. Mr. McDonald and of the ‘“Aid Society of Otter
Creek.”” The meeting-house was first opened for services
December 17, 1903. It was dedicated in the summer of 1904.
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> Episcopalians

In the summer of 1881, the Rt. Rev. William C. Doane, D.D.,
began to hold Episcopal services in his summer home at North-
east Harbor. In August of that year it was proposed that
a chapel be erected, and a site was given for the purpose by
Stephen Smallidge and Margaret Harrison Doane. Bequests
from Mrs. Edward N. Perkins, who died January 28, 1882, and
gifts from Mr. Perkins, made possible the rapid completion of
the work, and July 23, 1882, Saint Mary’s by the Sea was
opened for worship. The chapel was consecrated a month
later by Bishop Doane.

The church was renovated and enlarged on several occa-
sions but in 1899 the accommodations had become so inade-
quate that it was decided to erect a new church, which should
be of stone and larger. Bishop Doane gave the needed land
and work was soon afterward begun. The new church, which
is large and very beautiful, was consecrated in the summer of
1902. )

The following clergymen have been pastors of the church:
Revs. L. W. Fowler; Preston Barr, 1891; A. S. H. Winsor,
1892-5; Joseph R. Norwood. 1896, who, beginning in 1897,
served as pastor at both Seal Harbor and Northeast Harbor;
M. S. Hemenway, Northeast and Seal; E. T. Baird, present
pastor.

At Seal Harbor, services were first held in May, 1886, when
Bishop Neely held a meeting in the school-house. Rev. Wylls
Rede conducted services through the summer, and in Novem-
ber, a mission under the name of St. Jude was organized and
placed under the care of the minister at Northeast Harbor.
A chapel was built which was opened for services in July of
the following year, and consecrated two years later, August
29, 1889. In November, 1900, the mission was made indepen-
dent of the church at Northeast Harbor, under the care of
Rev. Miles Hemenway. In 1907, Mr. Hemenway had charge
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of the churches both at Seal and Northeast Harbors. He was
succeeded in 1908 by Rev. E. J. Baird.

The Rev. C. B. Smith, D.D., of New York, conducted Epis-
copal services in the school-house on the Brown Mountain Road
during several summer seasons, and in 1903, thanks to a
gift from Mr. Giles Sargent, the kindness of Mr. C. D. Joy,
who gave the use of his tools and labor of superintendence,
and to contributions from permanent and summer residents,
the Chapel of St. James was built in a beautiful grove over-
looking Somes Sound.

Catholics

The earliest Catholic services in Mount Desert since the
days when the French Jesuits came so full of hope and mis-
sionary zeal to preach the truths of the Christian religion to
the Indians, were held in the Union meeting-house at North-
east Harbor. In 1895 a church was built with a seating ca-
pacity of 170, but this was enlarged in 1901 to accommodate a
éongregation of about five hundred. The Rev. J. D. O’Brien,
pastor of Saint Sylvia’s Church at Bar Harbor, supplies the
church during the summer season.

Baptists

The pastors of the Baptist Church of Tremont had at times
preached at Northeast Harbor, but no Baptist society was
organized until April 8, 1893, when a church of twelve mem-
bers was formed under the lead of Rev. A. F. Palmer. The
Union meeting-house has served as a church, and the Baptists
have had the use of it during the greater part of the year.
On the 10th of November, 1893, a parish was incorporated and
a parsonage was built.

The Baptist pastors at Northeast Harbor have been the
following: Revs. A. F. Palmer, 1893-4; E. A. Cranston, 1897-9;
Clarence Emery, 1900; E. F. Mitchell, 1901-3; Chas. Hargrove,
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1905; E. E. Harris, 1906-7; and Charles Hargrove, who came in
1903 for a second pastorate, and who is still pastor of the
church.

Elder Lemuel Norton organized a Free Baptist Church at
Otter Creek, which enjoyed only a brief existence, becoming
extinet prior to 1867.

Rev. William E. Fay, a colored evangelist, organized a
“‘Christian Church’’ of twenty-five members at Otter Creek
not long after the close of the Civil War.

A few years later, Rev. Andrew Gray came to Otter Creek,
and by force of his strong personality wrought a great deal
of good in that settlement.

A new Free Baptist Church was organized at Otter Creek
in 1873, the membership of which at one time numbered forty-
six. This, however, like the churches which had preceded it,
in a few years became extinct.

PROFESSIONAL MEN

Dr. Kendall Kitteridge, probably the earliest physician on
Mount Desert, was the son of Nehemiah Kitteridge of Biller-
ica, Mass., and was born October 19, 1773. He married .Sarah
Whiting of Hollis, and came to Mount Desert in 1799. Ten
children were born to them. Since there were no good car-
riage roads on the island until aboyt 1827, Dr. Kitteridge
attended to his large practice by travelling either by water
or on horseback. He resided at Somesville, and continued in
practice for nearly sixty years.

Dr. R. L. Grindle of Somesville graduated from New York
University in 1868. He began practice in this town in 1872.
He was joined, in 1873, by Dr. J. D. Parker, who remained
until 1877, and in 1878 by Dr. A. C. Hagerthy, who practised
here, however, only a brief time.

In 1902, Dr. H. E. Milliken came to remain until the follow-
ing year.
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In 1904, Dr. R. W. Wakefield and Dr. J. L. Grindle began
practice in this town, but the former soon afterward removed
to Bar Harbor, where he is now in practice.

Dr. Grindle, who is the son of Dr. R. L. and Flora Miinken
Grindle, was born at Somesville in 1877. He prepared for
college at Coburn Classical Institute, and graduated from the
Medical School of Maine in 1903; coming shortly afterward to
Northeast Harbor, where he still continues in practice.

Dr. Frank R. Ober, eldest son of O. M. and Josephine Rob-
erts Ober of Northeast Harbor, was born June 1, 1881. He
graduated in 1898, and from the Medical School of Tufts Col-
lege in 1905. After a year spent in the Carney Hospital in
South Boston, Mass., he came to this town, since which time
he has been in practice at Northeast Harbor.

Jerome H. Knowles, Esq., who began the practice of law
. in this town in 1902, is the only member of the legal profession
in active practice in Mount Desert. He resides at Northeast
Harbor.

. H. S. Richardson, who graduated from Bucksport Seminary
in 1901, and from the Tufts Dental School in 1906, began the
practice of dentistry at Northeast Harbor in 1908. He is still
in practice.

THE JORDAN POND HOUSE

The Jordan Pond House, ‘‘an old-fashioned building of
rustic construction with rooms especially adapted for the en-
tertainment of visitors,”” was established by Mr. T. A. Me-
Intire, the present proprietor, fourteen years ago. It is situ-
ated near the shores of Jordan Pond, a beautiful little lake
which is set like a gem among the mountains, two miles from
Seal Harbor. o o

The view which the visitor may obtain from the spacious
verandas of the inn is one of the most charming among the
wonderful beauties of Mount Desert. Not only may one look
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out upon the lake, and at the mountains, but it is possible to
see plainly the waters of the ocean, as they sweep in to Seal
and Northeast Harbors several miles to the south and south-
west.

From a patronage for which 96 dinners were sufficient
during the year when the inn was opened, the business has
now become so large that twenty-four people are required to
look after Mr. MeclIntire’s interests, while more than 6000
dinners are now served each year. The house can now accom-
modate at dinner from two hundred to three hundred guests.

Among the several dining-rooms is one which is finished in
birch bark and cedar. It contains a huge fire-place, built of
massive rough stone and topped by an enormous stone mantel-
piece, which is very unique and remarkably attractive. The
“‘birch bark room’’ is a favorite with Mr. McIntire’s guests,
and is constantly in demand during the season.

The Jordan Pond House is situated, by trail, 6 miles from
Bar Harbor, 2 from Seal Harbor, and 214 from Northeast Har-
bor; by road, 9 miles from Bar Harbor, 2 from Seal, and 6 from
Northeast. It is open from June 15 unti/l early in October.



HISTORY OF EDEN

Eden, the largest of the four towns on the Island of Mount
Desert, comprising in population more than one-half of the
inhabitants of the island, and ranking first in both population
and wealth among the municipalities of the County of Han-
cock, is situated on the northeastern side of Mount Desert,
eleven miles from Ellsworth, the county seat. It is connected
by boat with the terminus of the Mount Desert Branch of the
Maine Central Railroad at Mt. Desert Ferry and by steamer
with Seal Harbor, Northeast Harbor, Southwest Harbor and
Manset on Mount Desert, also with Boston, Bangor, Winter
Harbor and Rockland. ‘

It formed, originally, a part of the township of Mount
Desert, from which it was set off, and incorporated the 107th
town in the District of Maine, Feb. 23, 1796.

The principal villages of the town are Bar Harbor, Hull’s
Cove, Salisbury Cove, West Eden and Eden, but of these, Bar
Harbor is by far the most populous and important. For a
period of nearly forty years it has ranked among the foremost
watering places in America, and its fame as a resort of wealth
and fashion, has long since become world-wide.

With the magnificent cottage-palaces, of the summer resi-
dents, the comfortable modern residences of the year-round
inhabitants, its well-built business blocks, excellent high and
lower schools and handsome churches, and with its well-kept
streets and avenues, shaded by beautiful trees, Bar Harbor, as
a residential village appeals to every lover of civic beauty as
one of the most charming in our country.
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The roads and drives in Eden are superb, and the scenery
through which one passes on the Schooner Head road and
Qcean Drive around Otter Cliff, between the Mountains on the
road to Otter Creek, on the shore drive over Duckbrook Bridge
to Hull’s Cove, The Ovens, and other beautiful places along
the north shore; over the hills and through the valleys to
Green Lake nestling among the mountains, then beyond to
Somesville, Town Hill or Indian Point, and to the countless
other beautiful places of Eden can hardly be surpassed.

EARLY SETTLEMENT

The first settler in what is now the town of Eden was prob- -
ably John Hamor, son of John and Sarah (Huff) Hamor of
Arundel, now Kennebunkport, Maine, who ecame with his wife,
Mary (Rodick) Hamor, to Hull’s Cove in 1768. Mr. Hamor
erected a dwelling at the cove, and lived there until the follow-
ing summer, when he sailed away in his little vessel for
Kenncbunkport, never to be heard from again. His widow
lived until May 31, 1814, when she was killed by an acecident.

Their children were:

1. David Hamor, b. 1757; m. Experience Thompson; res. Hull’s Cove.
2. Mary, b. 1761; m. Edward Hodgkins; res. Trenton, near Lamoine.
3. BSally, b. ——; m. Ezra Leland; res. Leland’s Cove, Eden.

4. John, b. ——; m. Sarah Hodgkins; res. near Hull’s Cove, Eden.
5. Daniel, b, ——; m. Polly Hodgkins; res. Hamor’s Sand Point, Eden.

David Hamor, eldest son of John and Mary Hamor, was
born at Arundel, and came with his parents to Hull’s Cove
in 1768; m. Experience Thompson, dau. of Wm. and Mary
Thompson, May 1, 1790. She was b. at Harpswell, April 18,
1771. The Hamors settled at Hull’s Cove, where Mr. Hamor
became a prosperous farmer, and an influential citizen of the
plantation and town of Mount Desert, and for a number of
years, treasurer and selectman of Eden. He d. Oct. 25, 1836,
but his widow survived him twenty years.
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Their children :
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William, b. 1791; m. Experience Mayo; res. Town Hill.

Betsy, b. 1782; m. Joseph Higgins; res. Town Hill.

James, b. 1794; m. Clarissa Rodick; res. Bar Harbor.
Jonathan, b. 1796; m. Hannah Brewer; res. Hull’s Cove.
Ezra, b. 1798; m. Eliza Higgins; res. Hull’s Cove.

Mary, b. 1800; m. Edward Brewer; res. Hull’s Cove.

Edward, b. 1803; m. Elmena Thomas; res. Hull’s Cove.
Hannah D., b. 1804; m. Eben L. Higgins; res. Leland’s Cove.
Cornelius T., b. 1806; m. Sally D. Hopkins; res. Hull’s Cove.
Prudence T., b. 1808; m. Eben S. Young; res. Salisbury Cove.
Peleg, b. 1810; d. unmarried in 1839.

Richard, b. 1812; m. Mary Ann Hamor; res. Hull’s Cove.
Alden, b. 1815; m. Triphena Higgins; res. Hull’s Cove.

Daniel Rodick and Elisha Cousins, the next settlers in the
vicinity of Hull’s Cove, were brothers-in-law of John Hamor,
Rodick having married Betty Hamor at Harpswell in 1764,
five years before he came to this place, while Cousins had
married Bathsheba Hamor at Harpswell in 1759. The Cousins
family came to Hull’s Cove in 1769.

The children of Daniel and Betty Rodick were:
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Daniel, d. at sea; unmarried.

James, m. ; res. Harpswell.

David, m. Sally Stanwood.

John, m. Thankful Higgins; res. Bar Harbor.
Abigail, m. Thomas Douglass.

Betsey, m. Springer.

Polly, m. Dean Higgins; res. Cromwell’s Harbor.
Doreas, m. John Suminsbuy; res. Hull’s Cove.
Hannah, m. Andrew Monarch; res. Hull’s Cove.
Sally, m. Oliver Thomas; res. Hull’s Cove.
Patience, m. Josiah Smalledge.

David Rodick m. Sally Stanwood, dau. of Job and Martha
(Bradstreet) Stanwood, June 2, 1787; res. Bar Island, Eden.
She d. Feb. 18, 1853; he d. Jan. 21, 1856.

Their ehildren:

1.

Daniel, b. 1798; m. Deborah Stanwood; res. Cromwell’s Harbor.
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Abigail, b. 1800; m. Jason Wasgatt; res. Cromwell’s Harbor.
Clarissa, b. 1802; m. James Hamor; res. Bar Harbor.
Benjamin, b. 1805; res. New York.

5. Emily, b. 1807; m. (1) Serenus Higgins; res Bar Harbor; m. (2)
Thomas Dollard; res. West Ellsworth.

6. Pamelia, b. 1810; m. Josiah B. Richards; res. Cromwell’s Harbor.

7. Betsey, b. 1812; m. Jonathan Manchester, of Mount Desert; res.
Bar Harbor.

8. David, b. 1815; m. (1) Mariam Higgins, (2) Betsey Brewer; res.
Bar Island, Eden.

9. Martha, b. 1819; m. Rev. Jas. Small of Exeter, Me.

W o

Elisha Cousins was moderator, clerk and selectman of Eden
during many years, and like Mr. Rodick, took an active part in
town affairs.

The children of Elisha and Bathsheba Cousins were:

1. A daughter, b. 1759; d. in infancy.

2. Ruth, b. 1761; m. Joseph Bunker; res. Cranberry Isle.

3. Johm, b. 1764; m. (1) Hannah Dyer, (2) Mary Higgins, (3) Eliza
Manchester; res. Hull’s Cove and Trenton.

4. Ephraim, b. 1766; 4. in infancy.

5. Bathsheba, b. 1768; m. Robert Young; res. Eden (Duck Brook).

6. Sarah, b. 1770; m. Daniel Richardson; res. Hadley’s Sand Point.

7. Elisha, b. 1773; m. Thankful Wasgatt; res. at the Narrows.

8. Ephraim, b. 1775; m. Louis Salsbury; res. Bar Harbor.

9. Baby boy, b. 1778; d. in infancy.

10. Joseph, b. 1779; m. Mary Cousins; res. Northwest Cove.

11. Joanna, b. 1783; m. Moses Wasgatt; res. Hull’s Cove.

Levi Higgins was another early settler. With his wife,
Bathsheba (Young), and two sons, Nehemiah and Elkanah, he
came to this island from Eastern, Mass., ir: 1770, and erected a
log house at Cape Levi, near Hull’s Cove. He was the first
chairman of the Board of Selectmen of the town of Mount
Desert, a member of the first Board of Selectmen of Eden and
lieutenant of militia. The Eden Baptist church was organized
at his house, July 5, 1799. His second wife was Mary Hopkins,
widow of Joseph Hopkins. Mr. Higgins died June 22, 1825.
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His children (by the first marriage), were:
1. Nehemiah, b. 1767, at Eastham; m. Ursula Leland; res. Leland’s

2. Elkanah, b. 1769, at Eastham; m. Azubah

3. Eunice, b. 1771, at Hull’s Cove.

4. Chloe, b. 1774, at Hull’s Cove.

5. Merey, b. 1775, at Hull’s Cove.

6. Hannah, b. 1777, at Hull’s Cove; m. (1) Amariah Leland; res.
Emery’s Cove; (2) Humphrey Stanwood; res. Bar Harbor.

7. Theophilus, b. 1779, at Hull’s Cove; res. Trenton, now Lamoine.

8. Richard, b. 1782, at Hull’s Cove; m. {1) Rebecca Higgins, (2)
Margaret Campbell; res. Hull’s Cove.

9. Josiah, b. 1784, at Hull’s Cove; m. Mary Cousins; res. Trenton.

10. Deborah, b. 1786, at Hull’s Cove.

I1. Mary, b. 1788, at Hull’s Cove.

12. Levi, b. 1793, at Hull’s Cove; m. Jerusha Cousins; res. Trenton.

; res. Fairfield, Me.

Israel Higgins and his wife, Mary (Snow), came from
South Truro, Cape Cod, and settled on the shore near Eddy’s
brook, prior to the year 1776. He acquired about two hundred
acres of land, and was soon joined by Solomon Higgins, whose
wife was Bethiah Snow.

The children of Israel and Mary Higgins were:

1. Henry, b. 1769, at Eastham; d. 1794.

2. Stephen, b. 1771; m. Deborah ; res. Bar Harbor.
3. Israel, b. 1773; d. 1776.

4. Oliver, b. 1776; m. Rhoda Leland; res. Bar Harbor.
5. Jonathan, b 1780; d. 1796.

6. Zacheus, b. 1782; m. Sarah Leland, res. Bar. Harbor.
7

8

9

1

Seth, b. 1785; m. Sally Hadlock of Cranberry Isles.
Mercy, b. 1787; m. Nathan Clark of Southwest Harbor.
. Mary, b. 1791; m. Christopher Havens; res. Bar Harbor.
0. Israel, b. 1798; m. Polly Hull; res. Bar Harbor.

Ezra Young settled at Duck Brook before 1774. He was,
perhaps, the foremost citizen of Mount Desert, held many of
the most important offices in the towns of Mount Desert and
Eden, serving as committeeman, captain and major of the
militia, and as selectman.
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The records of Mount Desert show that Ezra, son of Capt.
Ezra and Constant Young, was born at Mount Desert, June
24, 1774; that Capt. Young’s first daughter was born Nov. 28,
1782; and that Rossanna Young was married by her father,
Capt. Young, to Isaac Mayo of Southwest Harbor. Capt.
Ezra died June 12, 1812. His wife, Constant, died April 8,
1816.

Ezra Young, Jr., married Sara Hoges, by whom he had
four children. He resided for a time at Bar Harbor.

Elkanah Young of Eastham, who married (1) his wife
Rebeckah, Mar. 16, 1769, and after her death, Mary Lewis,
lived for a number of years near Salisbury Cove. He moved
from this town to Trenton.

Child by first marriage:

i. Mary, b. May 17, 1772, at Salisbury Cove; m. Wm. Mason; res. Eden.

Children by second marriage:

2. Elkanah, b. Eastham.

3. Barnabas, b. 1777, at Salisbury Cove; m. Abigail Salisbury; res.
Ironbound Island.

4. Abner, b. 1779; m. (1) ————, (2) Lucy Hamor, (3) Mrs. Mary
;5 res. Salisbury Cove.

Nathan, b. 1781.

Thomas, b. 1783.

Solomon, b. 1785; res. Trenton (Lamoine).
Seth, b. 1788; res. Lamoine. o

9. Lewis, b. 1793; res. Lamoine.

10. William, b. 1794; res. Lamoine.

Ebenezer Salisbury (Salsbury) and Mehitable, his wife,
were probably the earliest settlers in what is now Bar Harbor.
They came in 1776, and built a log house near the site of the
Newport Hotel of today. They afterwards moved to the hill
north of Eddy’s Brook, and finally to Salisbury Cove, where
they resided until they died in 1825.

Their children:

1. Molly, m. James Leland.
2. Stephen, m. Anna Snow Young; moved to Canaan.

59 53 60 (4
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Ebenezer, m. Abigail Knowles; res. Salisbury Cove.
Abigail, m. Barnabas Young; res. Ironbound Island.
Betsy, m. George Anderson.

Thankful, m. Eben Leland; res. Leland’s Cove, Eden.
Reuben, m. Sarah Anderson.

Nathan, m. Affiah Higgins; res. near Salisbury Cove.
Ephraim, m. Fanny Knowles; res. Hull’s Cove.

10 Penelope, m. Sparrow nggms, res. Indian Point, Eden.
11. Louis, m. Ephraim Cousing; res. Trenton.

©®Ne o

Josiah Black, moderator of the first meeting of Mount
Desert Plantation, was an early settler at Hull’s Cove. His
daughter, Olive, married Simeon Hadley, who came to Hull’s
Cove from Hempstead, N. H., prior to 1771. The Hadleys
resided near the cove for a few years, then moved to Hadley’s
Sand Point, where Mrs. Hadley died in 1819. Mr. Hadley
survived his wife six years.

Their children:

Esther, b. 1771; m. Gideon Mayo; res. Clark’s Cove.

Samuel, b 1772; m. Lydia Higgins; res. Hadley’s Sand Point.
Sarah, twin, b. 1774 ; m. Eleazer Higgins; res. Northeast Creek.
Olive, twin, b. 1774; m. David Higgins, 2d; res. Northwest Creek.
Simeon, b. 1776; m. Mercy Knowles; res. Town Hill.

Lucy, b. 1778; m. Burke.

Joseph, b. 1783; d. 1825, unmarried.

Hepzibeth, b. 1787; m. Wm. Richards; res. Hadley’s Point.

Ruth, b. 1789.

Samuel Hadley, son of Simeon and Olive (Black) Hadley,
m. Lydia Higgins; res. Hadley’s Sand Point.

Among the families who settled early on the northeastern
shore was that of John Thomas, who came to Bar Harbor prob-
ably in 1770 and moved afterwards to what is still known as
the Thomas District, near the mouth of Northeast Creek.

John Thomas married Elizabeth Peck in Providence, R. 1.,
Oct. 18, 1744. Their children were:

1. Elisabeth, born 1745.

2. Zena, b. 1747.

3. John, b. 1750.

e R
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Nicholas, b. 1753.
Hannah, b. 1756.
Peggy, b. 1759.
Huldah, b. 1762.
Amos, b. 1764.

e O

John Thomas, fifth of the name, married (1) Elizabeth
Cousins, she died, 1802, and he m. (2) Mrs. Elizabeth Parker
of Blue Hill in 1803. He lived on what is now known as ‘‘the
Comfort Thomas place.”’

Children by his first marriage:

John, born 1777; married Judith Thompson; res. Thomas District.
Benjamin, b. 1780; married Polly Thompson; res. near Northeast
Cre
Hannah, b. 1782; married Joel Emery; res. Emery District.
Oliver, b. 1785; married Sally Rodick; res. Hull’s Cove.

Betsey, b. 1787.

Comfort, b. 1789; m. Malinda Parker; res. on his father’s farm.
Cylinda, b. 1794; m. Samuel Bean of Sullivan.

Sarah, b. 1797; m. Cornelius Thompson; res. Emery District.
Ebenezer, b. 1801.

CEONS R ®E PR

Children by his second marriage:

10. Cornelius, b. 1804.

11. Peggy, b. 1807.

12. Parker, twin, b. 1810.
13. Susannah, twin, b. 1810.
14. Sophronia, b. 1812.

Nicholas Thomas, fourth child of John Thomas, 4th,
was published to Lucy Somes, daughter of Lieut. Abraham
Somes, Feb. 18, 1780. ‘‘But inasmuch as there is no Lawful
Authority within thirty miles of this place,”’ they ‘‘mutually
took each other for husband and wife in the presence of God’’
and witnesses. They settled in the Thomas District. Lucy
(Somes) Thomas died March 18, 1792. He married (2) Oct.
18, 1792, Jane Richardson, dau. of James and Rachael Richard-
son, who d. March, 1820.
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Children by first marriage:

Nicholas, b. 1780; m. Hannah Wasgatt; res. Thomas District.
Lucy, b. 1782; d. 1793.

Betsy, b. 1784; d. 1793.

Abraham, b. 1785; m. Jane Berry; res. on his father’s farm.
Isaace, b. 1787; m. Sarah A. Parks; res. Presque Isle, Me.
Jacob, b. 1789; d. 1793.

SO L o

Children by second marriage:

7. Lucy, b. 1793.

8. Betsy, b. 1794; m. William Leland; res. Leland’s Cove.

9. Jacob S, b. 1796; m. Nancy P. Townsand; res. Thomas District.

10. Amos, b. 1798; d. 1803.

11. James, b. 1800; d. 1804.

12. David, b. 1802; d. 1832.

On Dec. 24, 1820, Nicholas Thomas m. (3) Mrs. Lydia
Hadley, widow of Samuel Hadley. Mr. Thomas was a deacon of
the Eden Baptist church more than thirty years, and was the
first person baptized by immersion on the island of Mount
Desert. :

Another early settler in the same locality was Job Stanwood,
father of Benjamin Stanwood, whose name appeared on the
petition to Governor Bernard in 1768. The father with his
second wife came to Duck Brook not later than 1772.

The Bangor Historical Magazine says that ‘‘Job Stanwood
was b. in Gloucester and m. (1) Hannah Byles in 1749, (2)
Martha Bradstreet.’’ "

From Mount Desert Records: ‘‘A Record of the births and
Deaths of Job Stanwood and his wife Martha and their children.

‘‘First: Son, Benjamin Bradstreet Stanwood was born January ye
19th, 1766.

¢¢Second: Son, Humphrey Bradstreet Stanwood.

““Third: Son, Enoch Ticktum Stanwood was born April ye 21st, 1770.

““Fourth: ‘‘Son, David Stanwood was born August ye 22, 1772.

‘‘Fifth: Daughter, Sarah Stanwood was born October ye 18th, 1774.

““Job Stanwood, d. July 27, 1776.’’ His widow, Martha, m. Robert
Young, who lived at Duck Brook.

Three important families increased the Hull’s Cove settle-
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ment in the years following the organization of the plantation
of Mount Desert,—the De Gregoires, who began to be taxed as
residents of Mount Desert in 1791, and the families of Cornelius
Thompson and Samuel Hull.

Cornelius Thompson, born at New Meadows, Mass., in 1760;
married (1) Judith ———— (2) Peggy Thomas; res. Thomas
District. She died June 29, 1817. He m. (3) Mrs. Lydia Gil-
patrick of Marblehead. They were published Oct. 22, 1817.
He d. March 28, 1835.

Children by first marriage:

Judith, b. 1779; m. John Thomas, Jr.; res. Thomas District.
Hannah, b. 1783; m. Rufus Robbins; res. Eden.

Polly, b. 1785; m. Benjamin Thomas; res. Northeast Creek.
Cornelius, b. 1788; m. Sally Thomas; res. Emery District.
Samuel, b. 1790.

6. William, b. 1792; m. (1) Thankful Salsbury, (2) Elmena Kitt-
redge; res. Thompson Island He was taken prisoner by the English in the
war of 1812-15, carried to England and confined in Dartmoor prison
till the close of the war.

Svh o

Children by second marriage:

7. Huldah, born 1794; married Eben Oaks.

8. Amos, b. 1796; m. Tabitha G. Twisden; res. Thomas District and
Salem.

9. Joseph, b. 1798.

10. John, b. 1801; m. Adline Emery. They with two children, were
lost at sea, bound from Turk’s Island to St. Johns, N. B.

Thompson with his wife Judith and three or four children
came from Salem previous to 1789 and settled at Hull’s Cove.
He fought in the Revolution and was representative to the

Samuel Hull, who was a sea captain, came from Derby, Conn.,
settling on the south side of Hull’s Cove prior to 1789. He
was the most prominent citizen of the village and the cove was
named for him. He lived at Hull’s Cove until 1817, when he
moved back to Connecticut. He had nine children, none of
whom settled on Mount Desert, except Polly, who married
Israel Higgins, 2d, and lived at Bar Harbor.
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The section north of Hull’s Cove was settled after the Revo-
lutionary War. Ebenezer Salisbury and Joseph Hopkins
settled here early.

Joseph Hopkins married Mary —————, at Eastham, Jan.
11, 1770, where all their children but the youngest were born.
They moved to Hull’s Cove between 1788 and 1791, lived in a
part of Levi Higgins’ house a while, and then settled on the
south side of Salisbury’s Cove. He and his son Joseph were
drowned by the upsetting of a boat in which they were bringing
young cattle from one of the Porcupine Islands to Hull’s Cove.
His widow, Mary, m. (second wife) Levi Higgins.

After the Revolution, Thomas Wasgatt settled to the east of
Salisbury Cove and Amariah Leland at the west side of Leland’s
Cove.

Thomas Wasgatt m. (1) Eunice She died July 21,
1780. He m. (2) Hannah Thomas, daughter of John Thomas,
4th, and Elisabeth (Peck) Thomas, April 17, 1781. He d. May
19, 1820. She d. March 1, 1840.

Children by first marriage:

1. Deborah, b. 1771, at No. 1, Union River.

2. Thomas, b. 1774, at No. 1, Union River; m. Polly Frye; res. Bar
Harbor.

3. Funice, b. 1777 at Mount Desert; m. David Stanwood; res. Bar
Harbor.

Children by second marriage:
4, Hannah, b. 1783; m. Nicholas Thomas, Jr.; res. Thomas District,
Eden.
John T., b. 1785; m. Huldah Goodsoe; res. Eden.
William, b. 1787; m. Rebecca Hinman; res. Sedgwick.
Nicholas, b. 1789; d. 1863, unmarried.
Betsy, b. 1790; m. Benjamin Stanwood of Mattawamkeag.
9. Margaret, b. 1793; m. James Beverly; res. Bar Harbor.
10. Zenas S., b. 1796; d. 1797.
11. Zenas S., b. 1801; m. Josiah B. Hadley; res. Northeast Creek.

Amariah Leland was born in Sherbon, Mass., 1710. He m.
Ursula Lovett at Sherbon, where they had nine children. In

IS W
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1769, he, with his wife and two sons, Ezra and Ebenezer, moved
to Mount Desert and settled at Leland’s Cove, where he d. 1790.
Bzra was their seventh child, b. 1749; came to Eden in 1769;
m. Sally Hamor, dau. of John and Mary (Rodick) Hamor, and
settled at Leland’s Cove, where his farm extended from the
shore of Frenchman’s Bay to Northeast Marsh. He was prob-
ably the best farmer of the island at that time.

Their children were:

John, b. 1773; d. 1797.
Amariah, b. 1774; m. Hannah Higgins; res. Emery’s Cove, Eden.
Ezra, b. 1776; m. Mrs. IIannah Fish; res. Leland’s Cove.
Ebenezer, b. 1778; m. Thankful Salsbury; res. Leland’s Cove.
David, b. 1780; m. Susan Leland; res. Hadley’s Point.
Rhoda, b. 178Z; m. Oliver Higgins; res. Bar Harbor.
Daniel, b. 1784; m. Sally Anderson; res. Trenton.
Sarah, b. 1786; m. Zacheus Higgins; res. Bar Harbor.
9. THannah, b. 1789 m. John MecFarland; res. Trenton.
10. Marian, b. 1490 d. 1838; unmarned
11. Huldah, b. 1792; m. Henry Higgins; res. Bar Harbor.
J2. William, b. 1795; m. (1) Betsy Thomas, (2) Lydia Haynes; res.
leland’s Cove.
13. Betsy, b. 1797; m.
14. Experience, b. 1799; m. Dav1d Hamor, 3d; res. near Hull’s Cove.

R
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Farther to the westward three more families from Kastham
on Cap Cod settled as early as 1778, Joseph Mayn’s, at Old
House Cove, Jesse Higgins’, at Clark’s Cove, and David Hig-
gins’, at Spruce Point.

Joseph Mayo and Ruth Snow were married at Eastham,
Cape Cod, by Rev. Joseph Crocker, Nov. 12, 1767. She died
and he m. (2) in 1820, Mrs. Hannah Noble. Joseph and Ruth
Mayo with four children came to Mount Desert about 1778.

Their children were:

1. Gideon, b. 1768.

2. Joseph, b. 1770; m. Mrs. Gennet Higgins; res. Fairfield, Maine.

3. Tsrael D., b. 1773; m. (1) Mrs. Joanna Knowles, (2) Mrs. Jennie
Dennisor;, (3) Mrs. Mary Gilley; res. Israel’s Point, Eden.
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4. Prince, b. 1775; m. Priscilla Higgins; res. first on Town Hill, then
in Kennebec County.

5. Nathaniel, b. 1779; m. Priscilla Hopkins; res. west of Northeast
Creek.

6. Ruth, b. 1782; m. Oliver Higgins; res. Indian Point.

7. Thomas, b. 1784; m. Desire Knowlton; res. Town Hill.

8. James, b. 1787; m. (1) Sally Richardson, (2) Anna Reid; res.
Town Hill.

Gideon Mayo, oldest child of Joseph and Ruth (Snow) Mayo,
came to Mount Desert with his parents in 1778. He married
(1) Esther Hadley, dau. of Simeon and Olive (Black) Hadley,
in 1790. She was b. Feb. 1, 1771, and d. Sept. 23, 1808. He
married (2) Mary Higgins, dau. of Jesse and Priscilla (Snow)
Higgins, June 22, 1809. She was b. Feb. 3, 1781, and d. April
16, 1856.

Children by first marriage:

Josiah, b. 1791; m. Patty Snow; res. Clark’s Cove, Eden.
Ebenezer, b. 1792; d. Dec. 21, 1808.

Abigail, b. 1794; m. Elisha Richardson; res. Northwest Cove, Eden.
Experience, b. 1798; m. William Hamor; res. Town Hill

Ruth, b. 1800; 4. Nov. 17, 1808.

Mary, b. 1803; m. John Downing; res. Sullivan, Maine.

Joel, b. 1807; m. Betsy Salsbury; res. Town Hill.

IR RO TN

Children by second marriage: .

8. Esther, b. 1810; m. Amos T. Hadley; res. Clark’s Cove.

9. Ruth, b. 1811; m. Christopher Bartlett; res. Bartlett’s Island.

10. Ebenezer, b. 1812; m. Olive Storer; res. Blue Hill.

11. J. Zachariah, b. 1813; m. Rebecca Hadley; res. Clark’s Cove.

12. Salome, b. 1815; m. (1) Adam Treworgy, (2) Jesse Treworgy;
res. Surry, Maine.

13. Jesse H., b. 1816; m. Abigail Milliken; res. Clark’s Cove.

14. Gideon, b. 1817; d. Nov. 27, 1846.

15. Julia, b. 1819; m. Enoch Brown; res. Ellsworth.

16. Priscilla, b. 1882; m. (1) John Pierce, (2)
Ellsworth.

Gideon Mayo settled on the south side of Clark’s Cove. He
was deacon of the Eden Baptist church for many years. He d.
March 20, 1838.

Connelly; res.
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Jesse Higgins m. Priscilla Snow. With three children they
moved from Cap Cod in 1778, and settled at the shore, on land
now owned by the widow of their great-grandson, De Loraine A.
Higgins, between the Narrows and Clark’s Cove. His brother
David and family came about the same time and settled near
the shore on what is now known as Spruce Point. They were
the founders of the Higgins families in the western part of
Eden. Jesse Higgins d. Dec. 16, 1815.

The children of Jesse and Priscilla Higgins were:

1. Ichabod, b. 1774; m. Sarah Richardson; res. Northwest Cove.

2. Eunice, b. 1776; m. Shaw Higgins; res. Indian Point.

3. Jesse, b. 1778; m. (1) Hannah Reed, (2) Betsy Richardson; res.
Northwest Cove.

4. Mary, b. 1781; m. Gideon Mayo (second wife); res. Clark’s Cove.

5. Moses, b. 1783; m. Polly Higgins; res. Salt Pond, Eden.

6. Ephraim, b, 17R25; m. I’hebe Atwood; moved to Fairfield, Maine.

7. David, b. 1788; m. (1) Eleanor Wasgate, (£) Mrs. Harriet Colwell,
(3) Mrs. Mary 8. Davis; res. Town Hill.

8. Joseph, b. 1790; m. Betsy Hamor; res. Town Hill.

9. Samuel, b. 1793; m. Lavinia Snow; res. Town Hill.

10. William, b. 1795; m. Ruth Richardson; res. his father’s farm.

11. Priscilla, b. 1798; d. Bar Harbor, Aug. 12, 1878; unmarried.

12. Phebe, b. 1804; m. A. Green Crabtree; res. Hancock, Me.

David Higgins was a brother of Jesse Higgins.

His children were:

1. Rebecca, m. James Ellingwood; moved to New York.

2. Oliver, m. Ruth Mayo; res. Indian Point.

3. David, m. (1) Olive Hadley, (2) Mrs. Polly Burns; res. Northwest

4. Shaw, m. Eunice Higgins; res. Indian Point.

5. Sparrow, m. Penelope Salsbury; res. Indian Point.

6. John, m. Margaret Flyn; res. his father’s farm.

7. Priscilla, m. Prince Mayo; res. Town Hill, then in Kennebec County.

8. Lydia, m. (1) Samuel Hadley, (2) Nicholas Thomas; res. Thomas
District.

9. Affiah, m. (1) Nathan Salsbury, (2) Gideon Gidlescom; res. Sals-
bury Cove.

10. Hannah, m. Nathaniel Marcyes; res. Indian Point.

11. Richard, m. ————; lived on Cape Cod.
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To the South cf Bar Harbor two families took up land,
James Burrill at Cromwell’s Cove and later William Lynam
at Schooner Head.

William Lynam and his wife Chrosia came to Schooner Head
prior to 1789. They were the grand-parents of John S.
Lynam and the great-grand-parents of Fred C. Lynam of Bar
Harbor. Mrs. Lynam d. 1822.

Their childrer were:

Frances, b. 1781; d. 1815.
Jane, b. 1784.
Judith, b. 1787.
Chrosia, b. 1790.
Martha, b. 1794.
William, b. 1796; m. (1) Hannah Tracy, (2) Mrs. Eunice Clark;
res. Schooner Head, Eden.
7. Ann, b. 1798.

RSN

There were thirty-six families settled on the eastern half of
the island, June 1, 1791.

EDEN TOWN OFFICERS SINCE 1870
Clerks

1870, E. G. Brewer; 1871, J. Hopkins; 1872, Alonzo Hig-
gins; 1873-8, Samuel N. Rich; 1879, S. H. Richards; 1880-98,
S. N. Rich; 1899, W. H. Sherman (present clerk).

Selectmen

1870—David Paine, D. W. Brewer, Fountain Rodick.
1871—A. Higgins, F. Rodick, D. W. Brewer.

1872—C. T. Thomas, A. Higgins, Wm. B. Campbell.
1873—Stephen Higgins, Gideon Mayo, Ulmer Brewer.
1874-5—B. H. Higgins, N. W. Higgins, E. C. Brewer.
1876-7—Gideon Mayo, W. T. Thomas, J. H. Douglass.
1878—Jas. E. Hamor, E. T. Hamor, Bloomfield Higgins.
1879—Jas. E. Hamor, E. T. Hamor, F. M. Conners.
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1880—dJas. E. Hamor, F. M. Conners, Osmond Emery.
1881—Benj. H. Hamor, F. M. Conners, B. S. Higgins.
1882—Benj. H. Hamor, B. S. Higgins, D. W. Brewer.
1883—E. M. -Hamor, B. S. Higgins, D. W. Brewer.
1884-5—B. S. Higgins, H. C. Emery, D. A. Bunker.
1886—dJ. T. Higgins, J. E. Hamor, C. F. Paine.
1887-9—B. S. Higgins, J. E. Hamor, C. F. Paine.
1890—C. F. Paine, J. E. Hamor, E. S. Clark.

1891—C. F. Paine, Alonzo Higgins, E. S. Clark.
1892—B. S. Higgins, Alonzo Higgins, F. E. Whitmore.
1893—C. F. Paine, Alonzo Higgins ,F. E. Whitmore.
1894-5—C. F. Paine, F. L. Hadley, F. E. Whitmore.
1896-7—B. S. Higgnis, F. E. Whitmore, E. T. Hamor.
1898—dJohn E. Bunker, Jr., H. E. Wakefield, L. A. Austin.
1899—John E. Bunker, Jr., L. A. Austin, C. G. Hamor.
1900—C. H. Wood, A. Higgins, C. G. Hamor.
1901-2—J. E. Bunker, Jr., A. Higgins, G. R. Joy.
1903—B. S. Higgins, M. L. Lord, C. G. Hamor.
1904—J. E. Bunker, Jr., C. G. Hamor, E. T. Hamor.
1905—J. E. Bunker, Jr., John Suminsby, F. E. Walls.
1906-7—B. 8. Higgins, E. T. Hamor, F. E. Walls.
1908—E. T. Hamor, F. E. Walls, M. C. Morrison.
1909—J. E. Bunker, Jr., John Suminsby, Alton Carter.

EDEN IN THE REBELLION

Edw. F. McFarland., Co. G., 8th Regt. (reenlisted ’62);
Chas. F. Bunker, L. L. Day, Geo. W. Harmon, H. H. Higgins
(reenlisted ’62) ; M. H. S. Higgins, all of 11th Regt.; (original
regiments, 1861), Alfred E. Conners, G-11; Edwin Higgins,

D-1st Cav.

18th Regt., Co. C.—Isaac C. Staples, S. A. Bunker, John
Douglass, John Higgins, B. S. Campbell, John L. Emery,
Arthur L. Salisbury, Eben Burns, Geo. Burns, Edwin G.

Mareyes, W. B. Campbell, John H. Peach, Geo. Kittredge.
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26th Regt., Co. E.—Isaac H. Emery, John S. Billings, F.
D. Young, John H. Thomas, Richard H. Paine, David H.
Paine, Leonard Mc¢Farland, Henry H. Newman, Anson P. Cun-
ningham, Jos. E. Young, Ezra Young, Benj. R. Wasgatt,
Nathan S. Stanley, Edward Hamor, John S. Hamor, Samuel
0. Richardson, Jos. M. Higgins, DeLoraine A. Higgins.

1st H. Artillery, Co. C.—Geo. A. Bunker, Edw. E. Emery,
John M. Liscomb, Benj. Rodick, Ambrose H. Wasgatt; Co. L.—
Edward Hamor, N. S. Stanley, Marcus M. Alley, H. H. New-
man, David B. Hamor; Co. M—J. W. Leland, John M. Pierce,
David H. Paine.

2d Batt.—Alpheus McFarland.

11th Regt., Co. G.—Lewis L. Day, reenlisted.

31st Regt., Co. D.—Robert B. Higgins, John H. Thomas,
Chas. E. Hodgkins, Otis A. Higgins, Orrington A. Higgins.

Navy—Lewis T. Higgins.

Substitutes—Peter Langdon, Ferdinand Bovier, Henry
Coley(?), Alex. Monroe, Wm. Saunders, John Harvey, Chas.
Leonard, John Wilson, Chas. Wilson, Wm. F. Browning(?),
Wm. MeCoy, Edw. I. Bradley, Wm. Taylor, John Chatham,
Geo. Taylor.

The following are soldiers now residing in Eden whose names
are not included in the list given above:

Abijah Fletcher, Willard O. Fogg, enl. Otis, C-1st H. Art., w.
gunshot in side at Fort Hell, Oct. 18, ’54; Isaac Mayo, enl. Mass.,
Co. M., 1st Conn. H. Art.; Robert B. Hamor, enl. Boston, navy,
ship Flag; Wilson M. Mayo, enl. Eden, 31st Me., wounded at
Cold Harbor, Va., June 23, 1864; S. Osgood Richardson, enl.
Mt. Desert; Parnel B. Moore, enl. Ellsworth, B-6th, wounded
(now at Togus) ; Benj. Snow, enl. Bucksport, navy, ships Ohio
and Ladoga; Melvin G. Joy, enl. in Bangor for Jonesport, D-22,
reenlisted in navy, ships Conn. and Casco.

The widow of Chas. L. Sargent of Ellsworth, who enlisted
in the 14th Me. Regt., is a resident of Eden.
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David Manchester commanded the transport Fannie Laverge,
which was transferred to Commodore Parker’s flotilla.

Milford D. Leland of Bar Harbor, who "enlisted in Co. K
of the 19th Mass. Regiment for service in the Spanish-American
‘War, went with his regiment to Porto Rico. He became ill
with fever at Ponce, and died as a result of his illness in 1902.

EDEN CHURCH HISTORY
Baptist

The first meeting-house in the town of Eden, according to
the Rev. Geo. E. Street’s ‘‘History of Mount Desert,”’ was
erected at Hull’s Cove in 1797. On July 5th of that year, as a
result of a meeting held at the house of Levi Higgins at Hull’s
Cove, the Baptist church of Eden was organized, the oldest
Baptist church in the county of Hancock, and second church on
the island of Mount Desert. The thirty charter members of
the church were: Nehemiah Higgins, David Higgins, Jr.,
Thomas Wasgatt, Jr., Elkanah Higgins, Ephraim Haynes, Is-
rael Higgins, John Cousins, Peggy Thompson, Hannah Cousins,
Pamelia Young, Merecy Higgins, Hannah Wasgatt, 2d, Louis
Cousins, Mercy Higgins, 2d, Polly Hamor, Joseph Cousins,
Ezra Leland, John Thomas, Samuel Hadley, Oliver Thomas,
Nicholas Thomas, Lydia Hadley, Iannah Leland, Sally
Hamor, Tabitha Smallidge, Hannah Wasgatt, Jane Thom-
as, Margaret Stanwood, Hannah Stetson, Azubah Higgins. El-
kanah Higgins and Nicholas Thomas were chosen deacons ‘‘on
trial.”” John Thomas was chosen clerk; Elkanah Higgins,
treasurer.

At the town meeting of September, 1799, Mr. Benjamin
Downs was engaged to preach, and about a year and a half
later, June 15, 1801, he was settled as pastor of the church.
He stayed, however, but a short time.

Following the dismissal of Mr. Downs, there was no settled
minister in Eden until 1814, when Samuel Swett came to remain
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four months, at the end of which time, he, too, was dismissed.

The next pastor, Elder Enoch Hunting, was called in 1816,
and he was installed May 14, 1818. During Elder Hunting’s
pastorate, three revivals were held, and in 1829, the Eastern
Maine Baptist Association met at Hull’'s Cove. Elder Hunting
closed his long pastorate, August 30, 1832, when he resigned.

The ‘‘western’’ meeting-house near the Northeast Creek
Bridge was built about the year 1823, when the town appropri-
ated $350 for that purpose. Meetings were held in this build-
ing from 1824 to 1875, when the Baptist church at Salisbury’s
Cove was built.

The following is a list of the Baptist ministers who have
had charge of the churches in this town since 1870: Rev. Mr.
Wormwood, 1872; Revs. Wm. Corthell, 1873-7; A. F. Palmer,
at Salisbury Cove, 1878-9; Wm. Corthell, 1879; J. F. Eveleth,
1880; Herbert Tilden, at Bar Harbor, 1880; A. F. Palmer, Bar
Harbor, 1886-9; A. P. Fox, Salisbury Cove, 1897-8; T. F. White,
Bar Harbor, 1897-8; C. S. Mclearn, Bar Harbor, 1901-2; W.
P. Richardson, Salisbury Cove, 1902-3; J. E. Whitmore, 1904-5;
H. B. Tilden, Bar Harbor, 1905; Margaret Koch, Salisbury
Cove and West Eden, 1907; Chas. F. McKoy, Bar Harbor, 1906
(present pastor). 1

The Baptists withdrew from the Union meeting-house at
Bar Harbor in 1886, and, under the lead of Rev. A. J. Palmer,
organized a church of nine members, purchased a lot on Ledge-
law Avenue, and, in 1887, built the present meeting-house.

Methodist

The Rev. Rufus Bailey, who came to Mount Desert in 1828,
and organized a Methodist class on Beech Hill, preached also
at Bar Harbor. It was not until 1881, however, that a society
was formed. In that year, Rev. James H. Mooers organized a
class of thirteen members, and services were held in the Union
meeting-house. Soon afterward, a lot on School street was
purchased, on which a meeting-house was erected. This was
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dedicated August 12, 1883. The church was incorporated in
March, 1886. In 1888, the meeting-house was removed to make
way for the present brick e¢hurch, which was built at a cost of
$18,000. The church is named for Bishop Davis Wasgatt
Clark, a native of Mount Desert and a famous Methodist
churchman.

The pastors of the church have been: Revs. James H.
Mooers, 1881-3; James W. Day, 1884; Winfred Baldwin,
1885-6; Herbert E. Frohock, 1887-9; Geo. G. Winslow, 1890-4;
Rufus J. Wyckoff, 1895-6; C. B. Allen, 1897; Chas. E. Jones,
Nov. 1898-April ’99; Sylvanus L. Hanscom, 1899--’06; Warren
A. Hanscom with S. L. Hanscom, ’06. The present pastor,
Rev. Carl N. Garland, who came to the church in 1907, studied
at Bucksport Seminary, the University of Maine and Bangor
Theological Seminary, and was pastor of the church at West-
port in 1896, South Deer Isle, 1897-8, Penobscot, 1899-1901,
Orland, 1902, Hampden, 1903-6, coming here at the close of
his pastorate at Hampden.

Episcopal—Saint Savior’s, Bar Harbor

The first Episcopal services on Mount Desert were held at
Bar Harbor by the Rt. Rev. Henry A. Neely, Bishop of Maine,
who visited Mount Desert in July, 1867. Under his leadership,
supported by Mr. and Mrs. Gouverneur Morris Ogden, money
was raised to build in 1878 a small stone chapel with a seating
capacity of 325 people. In 1886, the growth of the summer
population made necessary an enlargement of the edifice, and
following this enlargement, gifts of great value were received.

The first rector of the church was the Rev. Christopher
Starr Leffingwell. Ie was born in Ellsworth, Ohio, December
16, 1827, and graduated from Trinity College, Hartford, Conn.,
in 1854, and from Berkeley Divinity School, in 1856. After
holding pastorates at Fairfield,- Conn., Palmyra and Canan-
daigua, N. Y., and Gardiner, Me., he came to Bar Harbor in
1879. He served Saint Savior’s for twenty years, and was
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pastor emeritus for three years longer, till his death in Wash-
ington, April 11, 1902,

The Rev. S. H. Greene, the present pastor of the church,
was born at Chapel Hill, N. C., in 1849. The son of a bishop,
it was but natural that he should choose the ministry for his
voeation in life. He prepared for the ministry at the Berkeley
Divinity School in Connecticut. He came to Saint Savior’s
nearly seven years ago.

Church of Our Father, Hull’s Cove

This beautiful church was built in 1891, the gift of Miss
‘Mary Rutherford Prime of New York, and her cousin, Miss
Cornelia Prime of Huntington, N. Y., in memory of their
fathers, the brothers, Rufus and Frederic Prime. The edifice
is of granite and rural gothic in style. A gothic well stands
by the path leading in from the building. The interior has
been beautifully furnished as a result of many gifts, among
which is the pipe organ given by the congregation in memory
of the Rev. Mr. Leffingwell in 1902.

Catholic

Saint Sylvia’s, on Kebo street, the first Catholic church at
Bar Harbor, was opened for services in 1881. A site had been
given for the edifice by Mr.. De Grasse Fox in 1879, and the
church had been built largely through the gifts of the perma-
nent and summer residents, from whom the project met hearty
support. The church was consecrated in August, 1882, by the
Rt. Rev. James A. Healy, Bishop of Portland. A year or
two later it was enlarged to double its former capacity.

The first pastor of the church was the Rev. Thomas Francis
Butler, who supplied Bar Harbor from the church at Ellsworth.
Father Butler was born in Ireland, was educated in the public
schools of Boston and at Holy Cross College, and studied the-
ology in the Seminary of St. Sulpice in Paris, where he was
ordained to the priesthood by the Cardinal Archbishop. After
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spending a short time as curate in Portland, he was appointed,
in the summer of 1880, pastor of Saint Joseph’s church in
Ellsworth. He continued as pastor of the Ellsworth and Bar
Harbor churches until the autumn of 1894, when he went to
Lewiston to become pastor of the important Saint Joseph’s
church in that city, where he is still located and held in the
highest honor and esteem.

The Rev. James D. O’Brien, who succeeded to the Ells-
worth and Bar Harbor churches in November, 1894, is also a
native of Ireland. He received his education at Paris and at
Rome, and was ordained to the priesthood in Montreal. A
priest of remarkable personality, a skillful organizer, tireless
in his efforts to promote the welfare of his parish, he has been
the primary influence in the erection, on Mount Desert street
and Ledgelawn avenue, of the magnificent new Saint Sylvia’s
church, which is one of the most beautiful in New England.

The church is now independent of the Ellsworth parish,
and Father O’Brien has become resident pastor. A very val-
uable church property has been acquired for the future needs
of the parish, and a parochial residence is now nearing com-
pletion. Saint S'ylvia’s has become one of the most important
parishes in the diocese of Maine.

Congregational

The Bar Harbor Congregation church was formed May 30,
1883, with thirteen members. In the following year, a par-
sonage was bought and in 1889 the present stone church was
built. The pipe organ, which was the gift mainly of Mrs.
Thomas Hubbard of New York, was installed August 3, 1903.

The Congregational pastors in Eden have been the follow-
ing: Revs. A. R. Plumer, 1877; A. J. McGown, 1884-5; J.
Torrey, 1886-9; G. E. Freeman, 1891-4; Richard Owen, 1895-9,
1902, and A. M MecDonald, the present pastor, who graduated
from Bowdoin College in 1891, Andover Theological Seminary,
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1894, spent nine years in Jacksonville, Fla., and came to Bar
Harbor in 1903.

Unitarian

The Unitarians in Bar Harbor, for a time held services in
the Union meeting-house, but nearly a quarter century ago,
they decided to build a church of their own. By a deed dated
December 3, 1888, Miss Mary Shannon of Newton, Mass., gave
a lot on Ledgelawn avenue to the American Unitarian Associa-
tion, on which a beautiful church was erected, which was first
occupied in June, 1889. This is used chiefly for summer ser-
vices, but a society of year-round residents was organized in
1894, and winter services are occasionally held. There is no
settled pastor.

PROFESSIONAL MEN
Physicians

The earliest resident physician to practice in this town was
probably Dr. William Rogers, who graduated from Bowdoin
in 1872, and came to Bar Harbor in 1880. He continued
in practice here for a period of nearly fourteen years.

In 1885 came Dr. J. S. Moore, who remained here about six
years, and Dr. C. C. Morrison.

Dr. Charles C. Morrison was born in Mariaville, July 12,
1856, the son of John T. and Lucy J. Morrison. He attended
the public schools of his native town, and the Maine Central
Institute, and graduated from Hahnemann College, Philadel-
phia, Pa. After completing his college work he pursued post-
graduate courses at Paris, Vienna and Berlin. Dr. Morrison
served as representative to the Maine Legislature from the town
of Eden, 1903-1905, and is a member, also, of the next Legisla-
ture. He is a member of the Governor’s staff, as councilor
from the fifth district.

Dr. G. R. Hagerthy was born in Surry, in 1865. He grad-
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uated from the Maine Central Institute in 1888, and from the
Bellevue Hospital Medical College, in 1892. He practised in
Hancock for three years, before coming to Bar Harbor in 1895.
Dr. Hagerthy is a member of Hancock County Medical Society,
and of the Maine, and American Medical Associations, and is
on the staff of the Bar Harbor Hospital.

Dr. Geo. A. Phillips was born in Orland, April 18, 1853,
the son of Luther Ames and Livonia Phillips. After complet-
ing the course in the public and high schools, he fitted himself
for college at the Eastern State Normal School in Castine,
Maine. Entering upon the study of medicine, he graduated
from the Medical Department of the University of the City of
New York in 1882, and shortly after his graduation, began a
professional career in Ellsworth, where he gained a large prac-
tice and established a reputation as a skillful practitioner. He
moved to Bar Harbor about ten years ago and has acquired a
large practice here. He is President of the Penobscot Medical
Association, Vice President of the Maine Medical Association,
and is also Consulting Physician to the Bangor General Hos-
pital. Dr. Phillips has acquired much prominence outside of
his profession, as a public speaker, delivering many notable
addresses before the Maine Medical Association and before many
public gatherings.

Dr. E. J. Morrison is a native of Mariaville. After com-
pleting his preparatory school education he attended the Phila-
delphia Dental College, where he graduated in 1888. He prac-
tised dentistry in Bar Harbor for ten years, but having deter-
mined to enter the medical profession, he gave up his dental
practice, for the study of medicine, and graduated from the
College of Physicians and Surgeons in Baltimore, Md., in 1898.
Shortly afterward he returned to Bar Harbor, where he has
since been in practice. Dr. Morrison is secretary of the Board
of Pension Examiners and has recently been appointed by Gov-
ernor Fernald, Medical Examiner for Hancock County.

Dr. Royal G. Higgins was born at Bar Harbor in 1867, and
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graduated from the Bucksport Seminary in 1889. He received
his degree from Hahnemann College, Philadelphia, in 1892, and
spent a year in the Hahnemann Hospital. Afterwards he prac-
tised at Princeton, Ind., for 10 years, at the end of which time
he pursued a post-graduate course in New York, coming to
Bar Harbor in 1903. He has since practised in this town.

Dr. R. W. Wakefield is a native of Stueben, where he was
born in 1877. He graduated from Cherryfield Academy in
1898 and from the Jefferson, Pa., Medical College in 1902.
After graduation, Dr. Wakefield served for a year as resident
physician at the Jefferson College Hospital, and later as demon-
strator of medicine at Jefferson College. He began practice ‘at
Bar Harbor in 1904. He is one of the Bar Harbor Hospital
staff of physicians, a member of the Maine Medical Association,
and is president of the Hancock County Medical Society.

Dr. J. H. Patten was born in Newport, Penobscot County,
in 1862. He was educated at the University of Maine and the
University of New York City, graduating from the former in
1882, and from the latter in 1886. Since his graduation he has
been in active practice of his profession in various parts of this
county, moving to Bar Harbor the present year. Through his
activity in various matters, Dr. Patten has become well known
throughout the county.

The names of Dr. N. C. King, Dr. H. D. Averill, a graduate
of Bowdoin in the class of 1887, who began practice here in
1884, D. Wellington Bunker, who came in 1904, and remained
until recently, when he removed to Bangor, Dr. E. DeWitt
Connell, University of Penn., ’95, res. in winter, 126 So. 34th
St.. Philadelphia, Dr. Atwater L. Douglass, Hahemann College,
95, John B. Shober, U. of P., '85, res. winter 112 So. 17th St.,
Philadelphia, and Dr. John Madison Taylor, U. of P., ’78, win-
ter res. Philadelphia. complete the list of physicians.

Lawyers

The following is a list of the lawyers who have practised,
or who are now in practice, in this town: *L. B. Deasy, Pres.
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Bar Harbor Banking & Trust Co., Maine Senate, member firm
of Deasy & Lynam, in practice here since 1884; W. P. Foster,
came about 1886, member firm of Foster and Wood, not now in
practice here; John T. Higgins, came about 1887, member firm
of Deasy and Higgins, not now in practice here; C. N. Higgins,
came in 1891; *Chas. H. Wood, came in 1892, formerly of the
firm of Foster & Wood, County Attorney; J. A. Peters, Jr.,
practised here for several years, now in practice in Ellsworth,
Judge of Ellsworth Municipal Court, Pres. Union Trust Com-
pany, Hardwood Co. and the Walker Foundry, representative
to State Legislature; *E. S. Clark, came in 1893; *B. E. Clark,
1894, Judge of Municipal Court; *John E. Bunker, Jr., 1894,
Chairman Board of Selectmen of Eden; *A. H. Lynam; *Geo.
E. Googins, 1897; *C. B. Pineo, 1898; *E. N. Benson,
1898; *E. B. Mears, 1900; *H. L. Graham, 1900; J. H. Knowles,
1900, now of Northeast Harbor; *H. M. Conners, 1901; M. W,
Abbott, 1902. The law firm of Wiswell, King & Peters, and
that of Hale and Hamblin, has also engaged in legal business
here.

The asterisk denotes the present resident practitioners.
The date given after each name indicates the year when it is
first found in the Maine Register.

ITEMS OF INTEREST

The first hotel in Bar Harbor was the Agamont, built by
Tobias Roberts, in 1867. The first cottage was built in 1867,
when Alpheus Hardy bought Birch Point of Stephen Higgins
for $300. -

Sproul’s Restaurant, for years one of the landmarks of
Bar Harbor, was first opened in 1869, in the building now
occupied by Mr. Max Franklin, the merchant. The cafe be-
came famous, and was known not only throughout the United
States, but even in Europe. Hundreds of distinguished people
were among the guests who were its patrons. It is very inter-
esting to read the names in the-old register which has been
preserved and is still in the possession of Mr. and Mrs. Sproul.



History of Tremont and Southwest Harbor

EARLY SETTLEMENT

Stephen Richardson, a brother of James Richardson, one
of the earliest settlers on Mount Desert, was of Scotch-Irish
descent, his father having emigrated from Londonderry, Ire-
land, to Gloucester, Mass., in 1738. Stephen settled at what
is now Crockett’s Point on the west side of Bass Harbor. He
was one of the foremost citizens of Mount Desert Island, and
it was at his house that the first meeting of the plantation of
Mount Desert was held, March 30, 1776. He represented the
plantation in the Massachusetts General Court, and was a
member of the first board of selectmen of Mount Desert.

Daniel Gott, a brother of Stephen Richardson’s wife, set-
tled near the Richardson family, and lived there probably
until 1789, when he obtained a deed to the two islands which
lie off Bass Harbor Head. He moved to the larger island, now
known as Qott’s, and lived there until his death, June 7, 1814.
Many of his descendants are still residents of Gott’s Island.

Thomas Richardson settled on the east side of Bass Har-
bor. He, too, was a prominent man in the settlement, and
was a member of the first Committee of Correspondence of
the plantation.

Ezra H. Dodge married a daughter of James Richardson,
and settled at Dodge’s Point, on the southern side of Seal
Cove.

By the year 1784, William Gilley, Tyler Reed, and George
Norman had settled near Norwood’s Cove. Ebenezer Eaton,
the first minister, Andrew Tucker, Samuel Bowden, Benj.
‘Ward, Joshua Mayo, Wm. Grew, Nicholas Tucker, John Ruie,
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Joseph Legro and Peter Dolliver had settled here also, all of
them, probably, at Southwest Harbor. Joshua Norwood, Ab-
raham Richardson and Peter Gott had settled on the east side
of Bass Harbor, while on the west side, Stephen Richardson
and Daniel Gott had been joined by Benj. Benson. Wm.
Nutter and Enoch Wentworth were near Goose Cove; Wm.
Heath, James Reed and George Butler, at Seal Cove, where
Mr. Heath had a mill.

The Dix family settled early on Dix Point. Capt. Chas.
Dix, of the firm of McKay & Dix, ship builders and owners,
died about three vears ago. The McKay & Dix cryolite fleet
of eleven vessels was famous. It was at the McKay
& Dix ship yard at Verona that the Roosevelt, Lieut. Peary’s
vessel was launched.

For this brief account of the early settlers of Tremont and
Southwest Harbor, it may be well to reproduce a document
which gives a genealogy of the Richardsons, who were the
carliest settlers here, and an account of the association and
inter-marriage of members of the family with the Gotts, who
were carly settlers here also. The descendants of these pion-
eers form a large part of the inhabitants of these towns. We
are able to reproduce this document through the kindness of
Mrs. Eben L. Richardson of Southwest Harbor.

THE RICHARDSON FAMILY

‘“In the earlier part of last century, two brothers, Stephen
and Hugh Richardson. residing in the North of Ireland, being
suspected of disloyalty to the Government, and Stephen having
also incurred the hostility of the Montgomerys, an influential
family living near Belfast, by having clandestinely married
Jane Montgomery. a daughter of the family and an aunt of
Gen. Richard Montgomery, who was killed at Quebec. they
concluded to leave the eountry, and accordingly in Oct. 1738,
they emigrated with their families to America; Hugh going
to Barbadoes, and Stephen coming to Gloucester, Mass., where
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he located, and raised a large family, the youngest of which
was not born until after the middle of the century; and where
he and his wife probably died.

His family consisted of five sons: James, who was prob-
ably born before emigration, Stephen, who was born at sea,
on the voyage to America, Thomas, Hugh and Elijah; and of
two daughters, Patience and Charity. Their relative ages are
not known, but the Family record, of one of James” daughters,
shows that she was born in 1752, when Stephen was but four-
teen years old, and is conclusive that James was his senior
by several years and was probably the oldest of the family.

At the same time and intimately associated with the Rich-
ardson family in Gloucester, was the family of Daniel Gott,
consisting of seven sons and daughters. As the result of that
association the three Richardson brothers, James, Stephen,
and Thomas, married respectively, Rachel, Elizabeth, and Mar-
garet Gott, while two of the Gott brothers, William, and Peter,
married the two Richardson sisters, Patience and Charity:
Charity being then the widow of Kane, of whose first husband
however nothing is known; and after Peter’s death she mar-
ried, as her third husband, and his second wife, Daniel Gott,
Peter’s elder brother. All, except the last of these marriages,
occurred at Gloucester. )

Nothing more is known of Hugh or Elijah, they probably
died early.

In 1762, the first year after the settling of Mt. Desert Is-
land by Abraham Somes, James Richardson moved to that
Island, followed in a few years by all the Richardson and Gott
families, who settled on Mt. Desert and the adjacent Islands;
James settling at Somesville, which had already been located
by Abraham Somes; Stephen and Thomas at Bass Harbor;
William Gott at Mason’s Point: and Peter Gott at Swan Is-
land. Where Daniel Gott first located is not certain, but in
1789, having purchased from the State, what was then known
as Little Plasentia Island, then unoccupied Public Domain, he
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made his home on that Island thereafter known by his name,
and died there, July 7Tth, 1814.

On going to Mt. Desert, Stephen located at Somes Sound,
but remained only a short time, when he moved to Bass Harbor,
locating on the west side of the Harbor, at what was afterwards
called Crockett’s Point; where probably all of his children
and many of his grand children were born; and where he and
his wife probably passed all the remaining years of their lives.
His house has, of course, long since gone out of existence, but
after the lapse of more than a century, the debris of the cellar
still remains. He also built the first mill at Bass Harbor and
opened the first public road between Bass Harbor and Beech
Hill.

From the public records, the Richardson brothers seem to
have been quite prominent in local history from the commence-
ment of the revolution, to the adoption of the Federal Consti-
tution. Stephen Richardson’s house was the usual place for
public meetings, and James Richardson was always Clerk and
Treasurer of those meetings, while Stephen and Thomas were
always on public committees; on Oct. 8th, 1776, Stephen Rich-
ardson was chosen as the first Representative from DMt. Desert
Island to the General Court (Legislature) of Massachusetts,
and at the first Town meeting held April 6th, 1789, for organ-
ization under the new Constitution, all were elected to promi-
nent official positions. )

The records kept by James Richardson of the various publie
meetings are still preserved, although somewhat faded, and
show him to have been a man of cultivation; and his brothers
were probably equally so; while the immediate descendants of
Stephen remember him as a man of marked ability.

When James or Thomas Richardson died, <is not known,
but Stephen 2d., after having nearly attained the allotted
period of ‘‘three score years and ten’’, died in 1806, Sixty
Eight years after he first saw light on the waters of the At-
lantic in 1738. Charity died probably, early in the present
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Century, while Patience, after a pilgrimage of over four score
years, died in 1827, and was buried at Fernald’s Point.

Stephen’s ‘‘Family record’’, as inscribed on the reverse of
the Title Page of the New Testament in his Family Bible, is
as follows:

‘‘Stephen Richardson, Born October 23d. O. S. 1738.
Elizabeth Richardson, Born March 14th. O. S. 1736.
Stephen & Elizabeth Richardson, Married March 11th, N.
S. 1762.
John Gott Richardson, 1st. Son, Born August 15th. 1764.
Deborah Richardson, 1st. Daughter, Born Dec’b’r 10th.
1765.
Elizabeth Richardson, 2d. Daughter, Born April 14th.
1767.
Stephen Richardson, 2d. Son, Born May 4th. 1768.
William Richardson, 3d. Son, Born May 27th. 1770.
Hannah Richardson, 3d. Daughter, Born July 2d. 1773.
Lucia Medicine Richardson, a Niece, Born May 7th. 1768.
Stephen and Elizabeth Richardson’s Family Bible.”’

‘We have no ‘‘Family record’’ of either of the other brothers
or sisters, but we have of several of their descendants, from
which we gather the names of their children; as follows:

James, had Rachel, James, Daniel, David, George, Polly,
Tamazin Jane, Rhoda, Judith, and Elisha, who left home.

Thomas, had Thomas, Pauh, Abram, Enoch, Polly, John,
Moxes.

Patience, had Rachel, & Eliab, Gott. FEliab b. ’69, d. by
accident '89. Comfort, Andrew, & Daniel, Tarr.

Charity, had Mary, Eunice, Margaret, John, Peter, Ruth,
Lydia, & Patience. 3 d. young, and all b. between 1777. & 1799.

The foregoing, though brief, is believed to be a substan-
tially correct synopsis of the family history and succession for
three generations, embracing their first hundred years in
America.
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INCORPORATION OF TREMONT
STATE OF MAINE.

In the year of our Lord one thousand eight hundred and
forty-eight.

_ An Aect
to incorporate the town of Mansel.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives
in Legislature assembled as follows:

Section 1. All that part of the town of Mount Desert in
the County of Hancock, lying south of a line commencing at
Andrew Fernald’s north line on Somes’ Sound, thence across
the mountain to the head of Denning’s Pond; thence contin-
uing the same course to Great Pond; thence across said Pond
to the southeast cormer of lot numbered one hundred and
fourteen on a plan of said town by John S. Dodge; thence
westerly on the south line of said lot numbered one hundred
and fourteen to Seal Cove Pornd, and continuing the same
course to the middle of said Pond; thence northerly up the
middle of Upper Seal Cove Pond to the head thereof and
continuing the same course to the south line of lot marked
‘“‘Reuben Noble’’ on said plan; thence westerly on the south
line of said last named lot to the sea shore, together with
Moose Island, Gott’s Island and Langley’s Island, with the
inhabitants thereon, is hereby set off from said town of Mount
Desert and incorporated into a separate town by the name of
Mansel, and vested with all the powers and privileges and
immunities, and subject to all the duties and liabilities of
other incorporated towns agreeable to the constitution and
laws of this state and is classed in the same representative
district as its inhabitants now are.

Section 7. This act shall take effect and be in force from
and after its approval by the Governor. :
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In the House of Representatives June 3, 1848, this bill
having had three several readings passed to be enacted.

H. D. McLELLAN, Speaker.

In Senate June 3, 1848, this bill having had two several
readings passed to be enacted.

CALEB R. AYER, President.

June 3, 1848, approved.
JOHN W. DANA.

TOWN OFFICIALS
Clerks—Tremont

1848-9, John S. Dodge; 1850-61, S. H. Clark; 1862, Wm. N.
Abbott; 1866-7, S. A. Holden; 1868, W. W. A. Heath; 1869-70,
Thos. Clark; 1871-3, W. W. A. Heath; 1874-6, Thos. Clark;
1877-80, S. W. Herrick; 1881-2, P. W. Richardson; 1883-4, W,
E. Richardson; 1885, E. N. Benson; 1886-9, C. H. Welch;
1890-1, B. B. Benson; 1892-5, E. B. Clark; 1896-7, A. L. Somes;
1898, E. B. Clark; 1899-1904, Geo. A. Lurvey; 1905, H. L.
Sawyer; 1906-7, L. A. Bunker; 1908, W. S. Sprague; 1909, A.
D. Moore. :

Selectmen—Tremont

1848—S. D. Norton, S. W. Clark, J. T. Dodge.

1849—J. S. Dodge, Barnard Rumill, Eben Fernald.
1850—FEben Fernald, Abr. Richardson, Alfred Harper.
1851—Abr. Richardson, Eben Fernald, Alfred Harper.
1852—Eben Fernald, Allen Hopkins, Alfred Harper.
1853—Abr. Richardson, H. H. Clark, Jacob Sawyer.
1854—Eben Fernald, H. H. Clark, Benj. Sawyer.
1855—Abr. Richardson, Eben Fernald, Alfred Harper.
1856-7—Abr. Richardson, L. B. Wyman, Alfred Harper.
1858—Abraham Richardson, L. B. Wyman, Benj. Sawyer.
1859-60—Abr. Richardson, S. H. Clark, Alfred Harper.

!
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1861—L. B. Wyman, A. C. Milliken, Peter S. Moore.
1862—S. H. Clark, Alfred Harper, Wm. S. Newman.
1863—Eben Fernald, Alfred Harper, S. H. Clark.
1864—=S. H. Clark, W. N. Abbott, Benj. Sawyer.
1865—S. H. Clark, H. H. Clark, Benj. Sawyer.
1866-7—Abraham Richardson, L. B. Wyman, J. T. R. Freeman.
1868—Abraham Richardson, L. B. Wyman, Benj. S. Doliver.
1869—J. T. R. Freeman, A. K. P. Lunt, S. A. Holden.
1870—J. T. R. Freeman, L. B. Wyman, B. S. Doliver.
1871—L. B. Wyman. J. T. R. Freeman, S. W. Herrick.
1872—J. T. R. Freeman, W. W. A. Heath, S. W. Herrick.
1873—J. T. R. Freeman, S. W. Herrick, B. S. Doliver.
1874—W. W. A. Heath, S. W. Herrick, C. M. Holden.
1875—J. T. R. Freeman, S. W. Herrick, Jno. G. Wilson.
1876—dJ. T. R. Freeman, S. W. Herrick, P. S. Moore.
1877—W. W. A. Heath, P. S. Moore, Geo. Reed.
1878—W. W. A. Heath, P. S. Moore, A. O. Richardson.
1879—W. W. A, Heath, P. S. Moore, Wendell Benson.
1880-2—W. W, A. Heath, J. G. Wilson, Byron H. Mayo.
1883—\. W. A. Heath, P. W. Richardson, J. W. Carroll.
1884—W. W. A. Heath, C. H. Sawyer, P. W. Richardson.
1885—W. W. A. Heath, P. S. Moore, C. H. Sawyer.
1886—dJ. T. R. Freeman, P. W. Richardson, R. B. Dix.
1887—P. W. Richardson, M. V. Babbidge, H. T. Webster.
1888-9—P. W. Richardson, H. T. Webster, L. W. Rumill.
1890-1—P. W. Richardson, C. H. Weleh, S. S. Doliver.
1892—P. W. Richardson, C. H. Welch, A. J. Carver.
1893—W. W. A. Heath, A. J. Carver, A. L. Somes.
1894-5—P. W. Richardson, A. J. Carver, C. M. Holden.
1896—P. W. Richardson, A. J. Carver, E. G. Stanley.
1897-8—P. W. Richardson, E. G. Stanley, Sim H. Mayo.
1899-1901—B. H. Mayo, E. G. Stanley, E. A. Lawler.
1902—B. H. Mayo, E. G. Stanley, B. B. Reed.

1903—W. W. A, Heath, E. G. Stanley, B. B. Reed.
1904—W. W, A. Heath, B. B. Reed, D. L. Mayo.
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1905—W. W. A. Heath, B. B. Reed, H. L. Sawyer.
1906—W. W. A, Heath, L. W. Rumill, C. M. Rich.
1907—L. W. Rumill, H. L. Sawyer, C. M. Rich.
1908—L. W. Rumill, L. A. Bunker, A. D. Moore.
1909—L. W. Rumill, C. M. Rich, E. M. Stanley.

TREMONT
Incorporated a town February, 1905.
Clerks
1905—A. L. Somes.
Selectmen

1905—Henry Clark, D. L. Mayo, S. S. King.
1906—Henry Clark, S. S. King, G. A. Lurvey.
1907-8—Geo. R. Fuller, S. S. King, H. A. Trundy.

CHURCH ACCOUNT
Congregational

The first church on Mount Desert Island was formed Oec-
tober 17, 1792, when eight women and six men of Southwest
Harbor and vicinity, under instructions from the Rev. Samuel
MecClintock of Greenland, N. H., organized the Mount Desert
Congregational church. Two years later they were visited
by an ordained minister, the Rev. Samuel Eaton of Harpswell,
when they adopted a new covenant, and observed the Lord’s
Supper for the first time.

During the years between 1793 and 1823, Ebenezer Eaton
supplied the church with preaching, though he had not at that
time been ordained. About the year 1823, however, Mr.
Eaton, then about the age of sixty-five, consented to ordina-
tion; and thenceforth, served the church regularly until 1832,
and occasionally for two years afterward. He lived at South-
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west Harbor for many years, but died at Sedgwick, June 1,
1841, at the age of eighty-seven years.

In 1799, the people of Mount Desert voted to build two
meeting-houses, and to divide the town into two distriets for
the purpose; accordingly a meeting-house was erected on the -
road about half-way between Seal Cove and Somesville, and
another 'at Manset in the town of Southwest Harbor. The
latter meeting-house, which was located near the old Bass
Harbor sled road, was never quite completed. It was torn
down to furnish material for the newer white meeting-house,
about the year 1828. The northern meeting-house, the interior
of which was never finished, was burned in a forest fire early
last century.

In 1831, Rev. George Brown came to assist Mr. Eaton in
the ministerial duties, but he was retained only a short time.

The Rev. Micah W. Strickland was called to the church in
1834, the year of his graduation from the Bangor Theological
Seminary. Mr. Strickland preached with success until 1841,
when he closed his pastorate here. He died at Prentissvale,
Pa., Feb. 13, 1884.

The incorporation of Tremont as a separate town caused
the church at Southwest Harbor to limit its responsibility to
the new town. The former name, designating the church as
the first on the island, was retained, except that in 1888 the
words ‘‘of Tremont’’ were added to indicate the field of its
activity.

In 1899, the Union meeting-house at Southwest Harbor,
built in 1885, and incorporated in 1888, became exclusively
Congregational in usage.

The present pastor, Rev. Chas. W. Robinson, who came to
the church July 18th of this year, is a native of Fitchburg,
Mass., and a graduate of Boston University, class of 1896.

His early pastorates were spent in North and South Da-
kota, where he remained until about four years ago, when he
came to Stonington, Me. At the close of his pastorate in
Stonington, Mr. Robinson came here.
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The following is a list of the Congregational pastors in
Tremont and Southwest Harbor since 1870: Chas. Brown,
1871; A. R. Plumer, 1872-7; H. M. Perkins, 1873-4; H. Hath-
away, 1875; A. N. Jones (Mt. Desert), 1881-2, 1884; Amos
Redlon, 1885, 1887-9; T. J. Lewis, 1890-2; J. E. Bowman,
1894-5; Geo. N. Hefflon, 1896-’00; Frank Batchelder, 1901;
Dean Walker, 1902-4; J. A. Lawrence, 1906-7.

Baptist

The ‘‘Mount Desert Baptist Church’’ was formed at the
meeting-house near Pretty Marsh, Sept. 11, 1816. The origi-
nal members numbered fourteen.

Elder Lemuel Norton, a native of Edgartown, Martha’s
Vineyard, became pastor of the church in 1820 and continued
as such until 1828, when he left to preach the doctrines of the
Free Will Baptists.

In 1832, Elder Elisha Bedell visited the church, and so
stirred the people that a new interest was at once made mani-
fest, an interest which added ninety-two members within less
than two years. It was in that year that Rev. Calvin L. Cary
began his pastorate of eleven years, during which time he
served the church faithfully and well. During his pastorate
the church membership increased to one hundred and thirty-
one.

In 1837 a new meeting-house was built at Center to serve
as a distinctively Baptist church. During the next few years,
however, services were held very infrequently, and interest
in the church declined until 1853, when Elder Cary returned
to his former parishioners to give them a part of his time.
Twelve men and eight women renewed covenant, and shortly
afterward they were joined by forty others.

During the years which followed the church could command
preaching only occasionally, and the several pastorates were of
short duration. . During this period, also, the membership and
interest became strongest in the vicinity of Seal Cove, where .
meetings were held in the school-house.
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The old meeting-house gradually fell into bad repair. The
belfry was wrenched off and blown away in the gale of January
10, 1878. It was never replaced after that year.

In 1893, the name of the Baptist organization was changed
to that of the Tremont Baptist church. In 1895 the society
was incorporated. Rev. L Y. Vinal at West Tremont was pas-
tor from 1896 to 1898. Rev. H. L. Skillin was at Manset and
Seal Cove in 1906.

In 1894 the members of the Baptist church living at Man-
set petitioned for permission to form a separate church. This
request was not granted immediately, but the William King
residence at Manset was purchased for a parsonage and, Dec.
9, 1897, a separate church was formed. This consisted of
twenty-six members and is known as the Baptist church of
Manset. Rev. C. P. Kittredge was pastor in 1899, Rev. Clar-
ence Emery, .901-4, and Rev. J. A. Thoms in 1908. 1Mr. Thoms
was succeeded in June of this year (1909) by Rev. Ernest A.
Lrites, a recent graduate of the Gordon Bible Training School
in Boston. Mass.

Methodist

The Methodist church at Southwest Harbor was organized
about 1865. The meeting-house was built in 1889, and the
parsonage in 1895. The following ministers have been pastors
of the church: Revs. Benj. F. Stinson, b. Deer Isle, Jan. 18,
1812, pastor here, 1867-9, Tremont and Eden, 1875, and sup-
ply, several times, d. Tremont, Nov. 19, 1887; Joshua A. L.
Rich, 1871; W. H. Crawford, 2d, b. Searsmont, Dec. 4, 1850,
pastor also Cranberry Isles, pastor S. W. Harbor Circuit, 1887,
5, 1906; Chas. Rogers, 1879-81; James S. Allen, 1882-3; N.
‘Whitney, 1884-6, Tremont (Maine Register), probably a sup-
ply; Warren Applebee, 1885; Oliver H. Fernald, b. Southwest
Harbor, Jan. 19, 1835, pastor here with J. B. Conley, 1886,
pastor Tremont and Eden, 1876-7, d. Burnt Hills, N. Y., Oct.
d. here July 23, 1903; LeRoy S. Bates, 1891-2; A. B. Carter,
1893; Wm. T. Johnson, 1894; Wm. H. Powlesland, 1895-6;
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Daniel H. Piper, 1897; Alilledge T. Anderson, 1898; Frank
‘W. Brooks, 1899-’01; Harry Hill, 1902-3; James B. Aldrich,
1904-5. Rev. O. G. Bernard, the present pastor, was born in
Orland. He is a graduate of Bucksport Seminary and of
Drew Theological Seminary, Madison, N. J. He preached at
Edmunds three years, and at Sullivan three years, coming to
Southwest Harbor in 1906.

Methodist interests in the western part of Tremont were
for many years under the care of pastors living at Southwest
Harbor, but in 1888, West Tremont became a separate charge.
In 1892, a church was organized and a hall was purchased for
a meeting-house. Shortly after 1900, this hall was torn down,
and the present meeting-house was built.

The following ministers have served as pastors: Rev.
A. B. Carter, 1894; S. E. Brewster, 1896; A. D. Moore,
1897; B. F. Lindsay, 1900; A. P. Thompson, West and Center,
1901-3; Rev. D. M. Angell, West and Center, 1904-5; Rev. A.
B. Carter, 1906; Nathaniel Atwood, 1907; F. L. Provan, 1908.

TREMONT IN THE REBELLION

Simon Higgins, Corp. Enoch Lurvey, Jr., w. and prisoner
in Libby, several months, trans. to navy; Thos. Milan,
Rob’t D. Salsbury, Albert F. Salsbury, Wm. H. Woodstock,
all of 4th Regt.; David N. Sawyer, 7th Regt.; Robert Black,
8th Regt.; Corp. Jas. H. Abbot, Sergt. Thos. Clark, Corp. A.
E. Connors, Lieut. John S. Dodge, Co. G, A. S. Bunker, all of
11th Regt.

13th Regt., Allison O. Dodge.

1st Cavalry, Simeon A. Holden.

These were original regiments, called out in 1861.

The soldiers whose names are given below entered the ser-
vice of the United States under call of the President of July 2,
1862, and subsequent calls.

D. W. Manley, Jos. M. Courier, Thos. A. Hodgdon, Gilbert
L. Lurvey, H. M. Gilley, all of Co. G, 15th Regt.; Tyler F.



94 TREMONT AND SOUTHWEST HARBOR

Rich, Wm. Fennelly, Sam’l M. Reed, all of Co. H, 16th Regt.;
Thos. S. Brown, 8th Regt.; James Maline (Malone), John
Maline (Malone), Chas. R. Anderson, Wm. McDonald, all of
B-7th; Daniel Brown, 8th; Stephen M. Gilley, G-18th; Pat-
rick O.  Conners, H-16th; Isaac C. Dow, H-16th; Joshua C.
Mayo, C-18th; F. G. Lurvey, E-6th; N. J. Fife, H-16th; Rob’t
Belyea, B-Tth; Jas. Greenlaw, Tth; Geo. McAllister, B-Tth;
Adolphus Sears, B-7Tth; Abraham Freeze, Jas. W. Ober, Chas.
C. Fuller, Seth H. Fuller, all of E-28th; Wm. Mason, E-26th;
M. R. Rich, E-28th; Reuben D. Rich, E-28th; Dan’l Ladd,
E-26th; Wm. R. Dodge, Benj. H. Dodge, N. R. Galley, I. F.
Lurvey, Nathan Higgins, John W. Alby, Ruel T. Ellis, all of
E-28th; W. W. Young, C-26th; Ezra H. Dodge, W. S. Dow,
Benj. F. Godfrey, all of G-1st H. Art.; Geo. L. Larkey, D-7th;
Preston Rich, Roscoe G. Lopaus, Thos. E. Dodge, Chas. R.
Gilley, all of G-1st H. Art.; Roderick Hodgdon, F-3d; Adolph
Milliken, G-1st H. Art.; Wm. Sawyer, C-1st H. Art.; Wm. L.
Holmes, D-2d Cav.; Enoch Lurvey, H-4th; Thos. Clark, F-
11th; James Long, D-31st.

Navy—Henry Brown, Jas. G. Brown, Jas. Brown, Wm.
Brown, John Brown, John -Brown, Wm. Bullen, John W.
Brown, Fred W. Brown, Henry Collins, Wm. Copart, Henry
Clark, James Cunningham, James Curley, John Donavan, Geo.
Davan, Archer Devine, Wm. Evans, James Gibson, Morty
Harrington, John Hornes, James Holland, Peter O’Hern, Thos.
Joyce, Geo. Joseph, Thos. Kelley, Stephen Lunday, John
 Seavy, Wm. Little, John Martin, Wm. Milligan, Jos. H. Man-
ehester, A. J. Milan, Samuel Moore, Thos. McArey, James Me-
Owan, Thos. Nacy, Wm. Neal, Wm. Par, James Quinn, J. F.
Reardon, David Smith, James Sweeney, Geo. Savage, Henry
Smith, Samuel Strout, Thos. Williams, Thos. Wilson, Wm.
Wilson, Edw. Flag, Chas. Frederick, John Fuller, Thos. Flynn,
Thos. Taylor, Edw. Francis, John W. Taylor.

The claim of Tremont to the following men was allowed by
the Naval Commissioners: Jacob Bickford, John Bickford,
Daniel Murphy, Maurice P. Rich, Jr., G. H. Hodgdon, Gilbert
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Moore, John T. Lally, W. T. Rich (no record), Sam’l Moore,
served 3 yrs.; Geo. H. Dix, Warren Moore (no record), Jos.
Robinson, Rob’t Gott, Sylvanus Gott, Chas. Thompson, Chas.
Fernald.

Substitutes—dJos. Gryu(?), navy; Frederic Cunningham,
army; John W. Rogers, navy; Chas. Simpson, army; Thos.
Taylor, army; James Thompson, navy; F. A. Vannah, army;
Geo. Mason, navy; Henry Brown, navy.

Navy—Abraham Branscom, enl. New York, ship Ashland;
James Hawkins, ship Perry; Wm. H. Freeman, Boston, ship
Caucassion; Norton Byron, Boston, ship Beauregard; H. C.
Raymond, New York, ship Bermudah; O. H. Richardson, Bos-
ton, ship Preble; M. J. Richardson, Fortress Munroe, Ironclad,
Passaic; Robert H. Robinson, Boston, ship Minnesota; Augus-
tus C. Savage, New York.

Dr. Chas. M. Sawyer enl. Boston. Mass., in navy; Daniel
S. Mooney, enl. New Hampshire, 1st N. H. Inf., Co. I, trans.
1st N. H. Cav., Co. I, wounded.

PROFESSIONAL MEN

The first resident physician in Tremont was Dr. W. A.
Spear, who came to this part of the island about forty years
ago and practised here until 1898 or 1899.

In 1880 Dr. R. J. Lemont, a graduate of the University of
New York, class of 1864, came to Southwest Harbor and has
since been located here. Dr. Lemont conducts the pharmacy
in Southwest Harbor village.

Dr. H. E. Abbott and Dr. Joseph D. Phillips came at about
the same time, 1886. The former remained only a few years,
but the latter has been in practice at Southwest Harbor for
more than twenty years. Dr. Phillips graduated from the
University of the Cit